Public Document Pack

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

WEDNESDAY 19TH FEBRUARY 2025
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE

MEMBERS: Councillors S. Ammar (Chairman), B. Kumar (Vice-Chairman),
A. Bailes, R. Bailes, S. J. Baxter, J. Clarke, S. R. Colella,
A. M. Dale, J. Elledge, S. M. Evans, D. J. A. Forsythe,
E. M. S. Gray, C.A. Hotham, D. Hopkins, R. J. Hunter,
H. J. Jones, R. E. Lambert, M. Marshall, K.J. May,
P. M. McDonald, B. McEldowney, S. T. Nock, D. J. Nicholl,
S. R. Peters, J. Robinson, S. A. Robinson, H. D. N. Rone-
Clarke, J. D. Stanley, K. Taylor, S. A. Webb and
P. J. Whittaker

AGENDA
WELCOME
1. To receive apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm
the nature of those interests.

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Council
held on 22nd January 2025 (to follow)



To receive any announcements from the Chairman and/or Head of Paid
Service

To receive any announcements from the Leader
To receive comments, questions or petitions from members of the public

A period of up to 15 minutes is allowed for members of the public to make a
comment, ask questions or present petitions. Each member of the public has
up to 3 minutes to do this. A councillor may also present a petition on behalf
of a member of the public.

A comment received from a member of the public will follow in a
supplementary papers pack to this agenda.

Urgent Decisions (Pages 9 - 12)

There have been two Urgent Decisions taken since the last meeting of the
Council.

Each Urgent Decision was informed by exempt information which is attached
later in the agenda.

Recommendations from the Cabinet Meeting held on 12th February 2025
(to follow)

Members are asked to note that under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Council is required to take a
named vote when a decision is made on the budget calculation at a budget
decision meeting of the Council.

At the time of publication of this agenda, the Cabinet meeting on 12" February
2025 had not taken place. Therefore, any recommendations in respect of the
reports considered at this meeting will be published in a supplementary
papers pack to this agenda.



10.

() Alternative Budgets (to follow)

Members are asked to note that under the Local Authorities (Standing
Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Council is
required to take a named vote when a decision is made on the budget
calculation at a budget decision meeting of the Council. This includes
any votes in respect of any alternative budgets that are proposed.

Recommendations from the Cabinet Meeting held on 19th February 2025
(to follow)

Members are asked to note that under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, the Council is required to take a
named vote when a decision is made on the Council Tax at a budget decision
meeting of the Council.

Under Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, any Councillor
who is 2 or more months in arrears with their Council tax payments cannot
participate in any item at the Council meeting concerning the budget.

As this meeting of Cabinet is due to be held on the same day as the Council
meeting, any recommendations made by the Cabinet at this meeting will be

tabled at the Council meeting.

Background Information on the recommendations from the Cabinet

0] Pay Policy 2025 - 2026 (Pages 13 - 14)

Due to the length of agenda for this meeting only the Pay Policy 2025 -
2026 covering report, has been included in this agenda pack. The
appendix to this report can be accessed in the Appendices
Supplementary Agenda Pack.



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Strategic Parking Review (Pages 15 - 26)

Due to the length of the agenda for this meeting only the Strategic
Parking Review covering report, has been included in this agenda
pack. The public appendices to this report can be accessed in the
Appendices Supplementary Agenda Pack.

Appendices 5 & 6 to this report contain exempt information which may
be considered in private session.

Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including fees and
Charges (following consultation) (Pages 27 - 114)

The Medium-Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including Fees
and Charges report has been subject to public consultation. Any
feedback arising from that consultation process will be presented for
Cabinet Members’ consideration at the meeting.

Appendix A to this report will follow in a supplementary pack to this
agenda for this meeting.

Appendix B to this report contains exempt information that may be
considered in private session.

Local Development Scheme (Pages 115 - 120)

Due to the length of the agenda for this meeting only the Local
Development Scheme covering report, has been included in the main
agenda pack. The appendix to the report can be accessed in the
Appendices Supplementary Agenda Pack.

Council Tax Resolutions 2025 - 2026 (Report to Follow)

This report will be published in a supplementary papers pack to this
agenda.



11.

12.

13.

14.

To note the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 12th February
2025 (to Follow)

At the time of publication, the Cabinet meeting due to be held on 12th
February 2025 had not yet taken place. Therefore, the minutes from this
meeting will be published in a supplementary papers pack to this agenda.

Questions on Notice (Pages 121 - 122)

To deal with any questions on notice from Members of the Council, in the
order in which they have been received.

A period of up to 15 minutes is allocated for the asking and answering of
guestions. This may be extended at the discretion of the Chairman with the
agreement of the majority of those present.

Each elected member due to ask a question, may ask up to one
supplementary question which must be based on the original question or the
answer provided to that question.

Motions on Notice (Pages 123 - 124)

A period of up to one hour is allocated to consider the motions on notice. This
may only be extended with the agreement of the Council.

To consider any urgent business, details of which have been notified to
the Assistant Director of Legal, Democratic and Procurement Services
prior to the commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by
reason of special circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature
that it cannot wait until the next meeting



15.

16.

17.

To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following
resolution to exclude the public from the meeting during the
consideration of item(s) of business containing exempt information:-

"RESOLVED: that under Section 100 | of the Local Government Act 1972, as
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of
the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A to
the Act, as amended, the relevant paragraph of that part, in each case, being
as set out below, and that it is in the public interest to do so:-

Item No. | Paragraph(s)
16a 3
16b 3
17 3

Background Information on the recommendations from the Cabinet

0] Strategic Parking Review (Pages 125 - 128)

(i) Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including fees and
Charges (following consultation) (Pages 129 - 130)

Urgent Decisions (Pages 131 - 134)

Sue Hanley
Chief Executive
Parkside
Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

11th February 2025



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jess Bayley-Hill and Jo Gresham

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA
Tel: (01527) 64252 Ext: 3072/ 3.31
Email: jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk /
joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE
MEETINGS

Please note that this is a public meeting and will be live streamed for
general access via the Council’s YouTube channel.

You are able to see and hear the livestream of the meeting from the
Committee Pages of the website, alongside the agenda for the meeting.

Live Stream to the Bromsqgrove District Council meeting - 19th February
2025

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers,
please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Meeting attendees and members of the public are encouraged not to attend a
Committee if they have if they have common cold symptoms or any of the
following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high
temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council
might have to move into closed session to consider exempt or
confidential information. For agenda items that are exempt, the public
are excluded and for any such items the live stream will be suspended
and that part of the meeting will not be recorded.


mailto:jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
mailto:joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
https://youtube.com/live/wI1Yeq_sK9w?feature=share
https://youtube.com/live/wI1Yeq_sK9w?feature=share

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Access to Information

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain
documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.

» You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before
the date of the meeting.

» You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.

» You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date
of the meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.

» An electronic register stating the names and addresses and
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of
all Committees etc. is available on our website.

» A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards.

» You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers
concerned, as detailed in the Council’'s Constitution, Scheme of
Delegation.

You can access the following documents:
» Meeting Agendas
» Meeting Minutes

> The Council’s Constitution

at www.bromsqgrove.gov.uk



http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/

Agenda Item 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRCT COUNCIL

RECORD OF DECISION TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURES

Subject: Former Market Hall site, Bromsgrove — appointment of Arcadis for RIBA stage 5
employers agent and quantity surveyor services.

Brief Statement of Subject Matter:

Arcadis were originally instructed to act as employer’s agent (managing the contract for FMH) and
providing QS (Quantity Surveyor) services up to RIBA Stage 4. In the original fees and survey
budget, an allowance of £195,000 was made for their services at RIBA 5 but it should be noted
that this budget was drafted over two years ago. The new fee proposal has come in at £226,882
which is an increase of £31,882. Officers have reviewed the overall fees and surveys tracker to
review the Council’s position as the budget for the project is £1,165,042.87 which includes all fees
and surveys associated with the site. If the Council appoint Arcadis to support RIBA stage 5, this
fee would remain in budget.

The pros of retaining Arcadis are as follows —
1. They are familiar with the project and have experience of the site.
2. No need to delay the project while carrying out a procurement exercise — can direct appoint
through Procure Partnership framework.
The risks of going out to market and finding another supplier are as follow —
1. Anyincoming PM and QS would need to get up to speed with the project.
2. If we did not appoint Arcadis, the Council would be without a Project Manager and Quantity
Surveyor which are vital roles, especially at this stage of the project.
3. The Council may not get a lower bid in terms of cost if we went out to tender.
In summary, if the Council appoint Arcadis, it will not impact the overall fees and survey budget
which currently sits at £1,165,042.87, would avoid a delay to the delivery of the project and enable
the retention of consultants who understand the site and do not require a mobilisation period to
familiarise themselves with the project.
Decision: To appoint Arcadis to deliver services for RIBA Stage 5 through Procure Partnership.
Date:
24" January 2025
RESOLVED:
RESOLVED to agree that:

1) Arcadis are directly appointed to deliver services for RIBA Stage 5 through
Procure Partnership

Pagé 9



Agenda Item 7

Grounds for Urgency:

Not directly appointing Arcadis puts the project at risk as they are now working out of contract.

REDACTED

DECISION APPROVED BY:

Chief Executive Dated

Sectlon . 151 Offlcer .......... Dated .................
Monlt 0 rmg Offlcer .......... Dated ................
Lea (.j.é.r ......................... Dated ................
Chairman, Overview & Scrutiny Board Dated
Chalrman ....................... Dated ................

P&gé 10



Agenda Item 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRCT COUNCIL

RECORD OF DECISION TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURES

Subject: Worcestershire Promoting Independence Service Tender
Brief Statement of Subject Matter:

At its meeting on 17 July 2024, Cabinet Committee approved the following in respect of a County-wide
Promoting Independent Living Service :

1) approval be given to recommission the Promoting Independent Living Service;

2) authority be delegated to the Head of Community & Housing Services, in consultation with the Head of
Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services and following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Health and
Wellbeing and Strategic Housing to agree the final process, timetable and evaluation model for the
appointment of a new contractor to deliver the Home Improvement Agency service; and

3) to award the contract to the successful provider(s)

A copy of the report is attached.

REDACTED

DECISION:

RESOLVE that the current contract award decision in respect of the Worcestershire Promoting
Independent Living Service be withdrawn and that the Procurement be abandoned.

Date: 28 January 2025

Grounds for Urgency:
There is a need to inform the organisations that submitted tenders of the decision to abandon the
procurement as soon as possible

REDACTED

Pagé 11



Agenda Item 7

DECISION APPROVED BY:

Chief Executive Dated

e e
i rmg P SN
P SN
Chairman, Overview & Scrutiny Board Dated
L SN

Pdgé 12



Agenda Item 10a

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12 February 2025

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2025 - 26

Relevant Portfolio Holder Karen May, Leader of Bromsgrove

District Council

Portfolio Holder Consulted

Relevant Assistant Director Pete Carpenter

Report Author Job Title: HR & OD Manager

Becky Talbot becky.talbot@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Contact emaiil:

Contact Tel: 01527 64252 ext:3385

Wards Affected

Ward Councillor(s) consulted

Relevant Council Priority

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND to Council that
the Pay Policy as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report be
approved.

BACKGROUND

The Localism Act requires English and Welsh local authorities to
produce a Pay Policy statement (‘the statement’). The Act requires the
statement to be approved by Full Council and to be adopted by 315t
March each year for the subsequent financial year. The Pay Policy
Statement for the Council is included at Appendix 1.

The Statement must set out policies relating to-

(a) The remuneration of its chief officers,
(b) The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees, and
(c) The relationship between-

0] The remuneration of its chief officers, and

(i) The remuneration of its employees who are not chief

officers.

The provisions within the Localism Act bring together the strands of
increasing accountability, transparency and fairness in the setting of
local pay.

Page 13


mailto:becky.talbot@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Agenda Item 10a

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12 February 2025

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

There are no implications in relation to this report

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

All financial implications have already been included as part of the
budget setting process and posts are fully budgeted for.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The legal implications are contained within the report.

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

There are no implications in relation to this report

Climate Change Implications

There are no specific climate change implications.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

There are no implications in relation to this report

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

There are no implications in relation to this report

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix A — Pay Policy 2025 - 26

Page 14



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

Strategic Parking Review

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Baxter

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Assistant Director Simon Parry

Report Author Job Title: Assistant Director of Environmental and

Housing Property Services

Contact email: simon.parry@
bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Contact Tel: 01527 64252 extn. 3201

Wards Affected All but with specific implications in the
resolutions for Bromsgrove Central,
Lowes Hill and Sanders Park wards
Ward Councillor(s) consulted No

Relevant Council Priority Infrastructure

Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) 3 of Part |
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cabinet RESOLVE that:-

1) The Business Case and Service review in respect of the delivery of
Civil Parking Enforcement Service (CPE), as detailed in the
appendices to this report, be noted.

2) The Assistant Director for Regeneration and Property Services
considers the future use of Churchfields Multi Storey, School Drive
and Stourbridge Road car parks within the development of the new
Town Centre Strategy.

3) Following the review of delivery options for Car Parking Enforcement,
and the impending changes arising from Local Government
Devolution, and subject to the agreement of resolution 4, the
Assistant Director of Environment and Housing Property Services in
conjunction with the Assistant Director of Legal, Democratic and
Procurement Servies to agree to extend the Service Level Agreement
(SLA) with Wychavon District Council for a period of 3 years and 7
months resulting in an end date of 315t March 2030.

4) The Assistant Director of Environment and Housing Property

Services in conjunction with the Assistant Director of Legal,
Democratic and Procurement Servies amend the SLA with

Page 15



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

Wychavon District Council for Parking Enforcement to include a
minimum of 25% of patrol time to be undertaken outside the town
centre.

5) The Assistant Director of Regeneration and Property Services works
with partner organisations including Wychavon District Council and
Worcestershire County Council to establish a Parking Working Group
in order to work through and consider the range of options contained
within the Appendices to enhance the opportunities for better
enforcement across the District.

6) The Assistant Director of Regeneration and Property Services
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic
Development and Regeneration develops a detailed implementation
plan including all technical surveys and full costs to install, where
practicable and affordable, Automatic Number Plate Recognition
(ANPR) systems to Recreation Road South, St Johns and Windsor
Street car parks and to also investigate other car parks under the
ownership of the Council.

7) One of the following options relating to the Shopmobility service be
approved:

a) To cease the operation of the Shopmobility service
OR

b) To review the provision of the service following the outcome of the
Town Centre Strategy Review and the outcome of where the
enforcement team are relocated.

The Cabinet RECOMMEND that:-

8) The Director of Resources includes in the Medium Term Financial
Plan for 2025/26 a capital budget of £100k for ANPR systems to
Recreation Road South, St Johns and Windsor Street car parks.

9) A revenue budget of £15k per annum be included in the Medium-
Term Financial Plan from April 2026 for the maintenance contracts
for the ANPR installations.

10)A revenue budget of £335,160 for Car Parking Enforcement be
included in the Medium-Term Financial Plan from April 2025, which
is to include an annual inflationary uplift, determined by the
Consumer Price Index (CPI).

Page 16



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

#
2. BACKGROUND

2.1  On 14th February 2024 Cabinet resolved to seek a Strategic Review
for Parking Services including on and off-street enforcement. The
review would also provide a Business Case, based on options that
would consider agreement of a longer-term SLA with WDC, tendering
the service and in house delivery of the service.

2.2  Waterman Infrastructre and Environment were commissioned by
Bromsgrove District Council to undertake the Strategic Review. This
proposal was based on a brief that was discussed and agreed, in
consultation with, the Cabinet Advisory Group on 8th May 2024 and
included three key deliverables.

o Strategic Review - A review of existing parking requirements
including supply and demand for now and in the future. This needed to
review all sites on a site-by-site basis with options to address existing
parking issues. It also needed to be linked to the wider Worcestershire
Transport Strategy because of regeneration objectives to increase town
centre living and footfall to support retention of the existing traders. The
review was also to include Leisure Centre users and a review of the
Shopmobility service.

e Car Park Management - A review of car park management
arrangements with solutions identified to reduce the need for off street
parking enforcement including an outline of costs, together with
operational and enforcement issues. Also to be included were
recommendations for time and day of restrictions to address existing
parking issues and assess enforcement requirements for identified
parking management design options.

e On-Street Enforcement - Review of On-Street Enforcement to be
carried out to address member and resident concerns around coverage
of activities. A review of concentration of enforcement and hotspots for
law breaking/nuisance was to be undertaken, focusing on repeat
offences. A variety of thematic options were to be recommended,
emphasising the comprehensive approach the study had taken to
reviewing car parking supply, usage, location and the land use planning
and transport agendas that were shaping it.

2.3  The three reports covering these deliverables are contained within
Appendices 1, 2 & 3 respectively.

2.4  Bromsgrove District Council (BDC) operates a number of fee charging

car parks and also a number of free car parks and has also taken
responsibility for the enforcement of On-Street Traffic Regulation

Page 17



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

Orders (TROs) since Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) was introduced
within BDC on 30 May 2013. This has allowed a more consistent
approach to traffic enforcement, as staff are able to enforce both On-
Street TROs and Off-Street Parking Orders for car parks owned by the
District Council.

2.5 Woychavon District Council (WDC) have been contracted under an SLA
to manage the Parking Service on behalf of BDC for the last 11 years.
At the Cabinet meeting on 14th February 2024, it was agreed to
maintain the services of WDC for a shorter period of 18 months whilst
the options of alternative delivery models were considered and
reported back to Cabinet as part of this report.

2.6 Inthe interim period officers from BDC and WDC have worked together
to review the concerns of members, including, primarily, the out-of-town
patrol time, whilst also ensuring that a full quota of CEOs are
maintained in order to deliver the service effectively. Data on patrol
time, and PCNs issued is collated monthly and has generally shown
two key trends, increased levels of PCN activity, as well as more,
proportionally, patrol time spent in the Parishes.

2.7 WDC'’s responsibilities include Overall Management of the Parking
Service for both On and Off-Street enforcement and liaison with County
Council Highways together with the following non-exhaustive list:

. Recruitment, management and training of the Civil Enforcement
Officers (CEOSs) (5.5 posts)

. Full administration service including general enquiries,
challenges, appeals and adjudication (2.5 posts)

. Recovery of the outstanding Penalty Charge Notices (PCNSs)
(including warrant instructions)

. The management of Residents’ Parking Schemes (RPSs)

. Monitoring equipment used to include parking machines to
ensure continued usage including restocking machines with
ticket rolls

. The day-to-day operation of the Shopmobility service including
servicing of scooters and liaising with customers

. Issuing Parking Dispensations

. School Patrols following liaison with school staff

. Disabled Blue Badge inspections

. DVLA Audits

. Various reporting including car park usage and PCNs issued.

2.8 Shopmobility — As part of the Strategic Review, Members requested
that the Shopmobility service be incorporated into the business case as
it is based in Churchfields Multi-Storey Car Park, next to Asda.
Shopmobility is currently open Mon-Sat (9.30am to 1.30pm) (bookings

Page 18



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

only). The service used to be open Mon-Sat (9am to 5pm), however
since COVID and the closure of the Multi-Storey Car Park demand has
been low.

2.9 The SLA in place between Wychavon District Council Parking section
and Bromsgrove District Council forms part of a contract with
Environmental Services, for facilitation of the car parks and civil
enforcement service. When originally set up, there was a charge for
disabled car parking, and it was seen as a service that supported these
customers. Since June 2024, car parking has been free for disabled
drivers.

3. OPERATIONAL ISSUES

Strategic Review

3.1 Car parks were assessed across a number of factors including
capacity, condition, usage, proportions of blue badge parking bays and
Electric Vehicle (EV) charging bays, safety and security, accessibility,
and convenience and usability. The results of these are contained in
Appendix 1 and are collated in Table 10: Summary of
Recommendations.

3.2 In general terms the condition of car parks is good which is borne out of
the investment in resurfacing, new lining and new machines that have
been installed over recent years. The recommendations vary across
the Car Parks but include improved signage, potential opportunities for
fee charging on free car parks and introducing ANPR across a number
of the car parks.

3.3  The car parks at School Drive and Stourbridge Road were identified as
satisfactory with both being underutilised. These sites occupy
potentially valuable land and therefore these underutilised car parks
may be better used for other needs. Consideration of the future use of
these car parks will be included within the forthcoming Town Centre
Strategy review which is designed to provide a clear vision for the town
centre in terms of what it should look and feel like for residents,
businesses and visitors and guide decisions in relation to the use of
Council owned land, including car parks.

3.4  Churchfields Multi Storey Car Park, at the time of the survey, was
decommissioned. However, the projected demand for car parks
appears to be met by current capacity, not including Churchfields.
Therefore, the recommendation is to consider demolition of the
Churchfields car park and / or to repurpose the structure/land. It is
envisaged that proposals regarding this car park will be addressed
within the Town Centre Strategy review.

Page 19



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

3.5 These three sites were also included in the Bromsgrove Town Centre
2040 Vision which set out to support the future development of the area
and provide the right level of services to meet the needs of both
residents and business population. The document was founded on the
need to regenerate and the opportunity to redevelop major unused or
underused sites which will attract people and investment to the town
centre.

3.6 Itis acknowledged that whilst the review has centred on those car
parks maintained and manged by the Council it has not taken an
overarching review of all parking demand across the District. Instead,
the review has concentrated on the car parks that BDC owns and
operates, in order to understand the condition and future viability based
on demand requirements on those car parks and the town centre. As
identified across the 3 reports, there is a clear need for partnership
working with all relevant stakeholders in order to identify potential
solutions across the whole of the District.

3.7  One of the recommendations is to increase Electric Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure (EVCI). The Council have previously invested in EVCI
ensuring some of the authority’s car parks have these facilities. This
project delivered the installations to the following car parks, Golden
Cross Car Park, Alvechurch Car Park, Sanders Park Car Park, Windsor
Street, North Bromsgrove (Bromsgrove Leisure Centre), Asda
Bromsgrove, Aston Fields, Barnt Green Parish, Princess of Wales
(POW) Community Hospital, and Webbs Hagley Garden Centre.

3.8  The Council has a current contract with Zest Eco Limited to expand
EVCI across Council owned land primarily in the authority’s remaining
car parks and also office car parks. The project which covers a 15 year
period, with an option to extend for a further 5 years, is assessing each
of the car parks that do not currently have EVCI.

3.9  The supplier is required to provide fully funded EVCI at no cost to the
Council. The contract allows for the supply, installation, maintenance
and ongoing operational management of the EVCI across the various
agreed sites. The first installations are currently being programmed for
an early 2025 commencement.

3.10 To further enhance the ECVI schemes above, which concentrate
around car parks, there is a government funded Local Electric Vehicle
Infrastructure (LEVI) scheme which is being co-ordinated by
Worcestershire County Council. An allocation of £3.5m has been
received and is primarily focused on delivering public charge points
(predominantly low powered chargers) for residents without dedicated
off-street parking at home.

Page 20



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

3.11 The County Council are producing tender documents that will be
released in early 2025. There is a long list of sites across the County
that are being developed based on the criteria set within the funding
terms. It is anticipated that once a provider has been identified the
County and associated Districts will liaise with the provider to identify
the most appropriate charger points across Worcestershire.

Car Park Management

3.12 As part of the discussions through Cabinet Advisory Group on 8th May
2024 and discussions at the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting held
on 12th February 2024, there was a clear desire expressed by
Members to ensure a more equitable balance in patrols across the
whole District. The SLA with WDC included a 10% provision for out-of-
town centre patrol time. In order to assist with on street enforcement,
the review of off-street enforcement was included.

3.13 As part of the recommendations for providing more patrol time for on
street enforcement, ANPR has been considered within the report at
Appendix 2. This system would provide monitoring of vehicles entering
and exiting the car park at all times of the day, the length of stay and
subsequent payment.

3.14 The installation of ANPR was recommended across most sites within
Appendices 1 and 2. However, the preferred option is to install across
the high volume and income value sites at Recreation Road South, St
Johns and Windsor Street where local conditions allow.

3.15 Subject to Members’ agreement to resolution 6, it is proposed that the
outcomes of the detailed Implementation Plan should be reported for
Cabinet’s consideration at a later date and inform further discussions
regarding possible use of ANPR.

3.16 As part of the Strategic Review, analysis of enforcement for on street
parking in the District was undertaken. Through engagement with
Members, on a local basis, as well as some residents, issues of on
street parking both within centres on residential streets and outside
schools, at peak times, have been raised.

On Street Enforcement

3.17 On Street parking enforcement, together with Off Street enforcement, is
currently contracted to WDC to administer. This service is delivered
with 5.5 CEOs spread across the mainly rural District which in turn
brings coverage issues based on the geographical nature of the
District.

Page 21



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

3.18 Through the course of the last 12 months, Officers have been working
closely with WDC Officers to review patrols based on the feedback
given by members, regarding the volume of time spent within the
parishes versus the town centre. In the initial version of the SLA, there
was an indication that 10% of patrol time should be spent outside of the
town centre. As a consequence of the reviews of patrols, the proportion
of time spent outside Bromsgrove town centre has increased. A
quarterly summary of PCN information including patrol time in and
outside of the town centre is also included as well as a comparison with
the corresponding quarter from the previous year and is contained
within Appendix 4 .

3.19 Across most of the ward-based engagement with Members, issues
around parking outside schools at peak times was frequently raised.
There is currently no uniform approach to addressing these concerns
based on the different stakeholders that have a role to play in achieving
more considerate and compliant parking. The Police, Schools, Local
Authority and CEOs all have a role to play in promoting and enforcing
considerate parking.

3.20 Examples of both ‘softer’ and ‘harder’ measures highlighted in the
report are a social media and community engagement campaign to be
rolled out, targeted at drivers, to encourage considerate parking outside
of shops and schools, as a “softer measure” behavioural change
campaign. Further investigation and action is needed to review and
amend “harder measure” parking restrictions and increase coverage of
signing and lining options (i.e. double yellow lines, designated parking
areas).

3.21 A key element of enforcement is to have a clear line of communication
and therefore one of the recommendations is for BDC and WCC to
investigate the potential of developing an online tool to enable BDC
residents to log parking violations and persistent offences. This would
be linked to the current WCC system to report environmental concerns
and problems with street furniture (i.e. street lighting, pavements). The
system could be used by WDC as a measure to target resources from
local intelligence.

3.22 There are a range of options that are listed in the Executive Summary
of Appendix 3 - Review of On-Street Enforcement.

3.23 A key element of delivery in this context, is to ensure there is clear
partnership working amongst the various stakeholders. It is therefore
recommended that a Parking Task Group be established including
representatives from BDC, WDC and WCC to work through the various
options pertinent to each organisation.

Page 22



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

Options Appraisal

3.24 In order to assess how car parking enforcement may be delivered in
the medium and long term, an options appraisal identifying the
positives and negatives of the three key options has been undertaken.
These options are; 1. maintain the SLA with WDC, 2. tender out to
external contractors and 3. delivery with internal resources. The
outcomes of this options appraisal are detailed in Appendix 5.

3.25 The publication of the English Devolution White Paper on 16th
December 2024 has provided uncertainty on the impact that this will
have on BDC over the forthcoming 2 to 4 years. As such, continuity of
service for parking enforcement is recommended by an extension to
the period of the services delivered by WDC. This continuity will ensure
compliance of service delivery during the period of the extended SLA.
This will also allow officers the time and capacity to deliver the ANPR
solutions for the 3 car parks identified. The strategy therefore to further
enhance service delivery will include the introduction of ANPR,
providing more opportunity for on street enforcement, an ongoing
review and amendments to patrols. This is based on feedback given
with the reports and further analysis of patrol information including both
coverage and frequency across the District, analysis of data to identify
existing and potentially emerging hotspots for poor and illegal parking
practices, together with the key recommendations to be considered by
the Parking Working Group.

3.26 Whilst the review of patrols is ongoing, as part of this review and
working with the Parish Councils, an investigation into whether it would
be viable to purchase additional time for patrols within their locations
could be undertaken.

Shopmobility

3.27 The service currently has five customers with one customer being a
regular user (once a week). The other customers use the service on an
ad-hoc basis typically once every few months and then there are other
ad-hoc customers who may use the service a few times per year. Pre
COVID, there were more customers using the service; approximately
12-15 customers per week. Since COVID the demand has been low.
This is possibly due to several factors, including the closure of the
multi-storey car park and more people owning their own mobility
equipment.

3.28 In order to assess usage, a survey was undertaken in 2021 for

residents to have their say about the service. 19 people responded — 2
were current users; 4 were previous users; and 13 had never used the

Page 23



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

service. Those who used the service either travelled by car or taxi.
When asked what enables them to get out and about more easily the
majority had access to a car; friends or family to rely on; or their own
mobility scooter which has become much more affordable in recent
years.

3.29 Attempts have been made to look to relocate the service. This has
included approaching Asda, however they have two shopping mobility
scooters for customers use and do not have the room to accommodate
any more equipment. Age UK have a charity shop on the High Street
however, they did not feel they would be able to hire equipment from
there. Another option was the customer service section at Parkside
however, they did not have the room to accommodate the scooters and
it would have been difficult for customers to access.

3.30 The current budget for Bromsgrove Shopmobility is £5,000 to cover the
costs of the equipment, maintenance and business rates. The cost of
servicing the equipment continues to increase, particularly as the
equipment is older and needs replacing.

3.31 The demand for this type of service in Bromsgrove seems low. With
the potential plan to permanently close the multi-story car park and to
relocate the staff based there, the recommendation would be to either
close the Shopmobility service or to provide the service from a new
location. An option may be to lease the equipment in the future as if
the service was to continue the equipment would need updating.

3.32 Inrespect of the option to close the service, an Equality Impact
Assessment has been undertaken. It proposes that Officers would
consult directly with the users who are potentially impacted.

3.33 There is £1,375 available in reserves which was donated to the service
by a disability organisation at the point of closure. This money could be
included within the Bromsgrove Equality Grants Scheme for VCS
organisations to apply via the annual grants process.

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 A budget of £50k was identified and agreed at Council on 21st
February 2024 for the strategic review to be undertaken. The
completed works have been undertaken in line with the proposal
submitted by Watermans.

4.2  The annual cost for parking enforcement undertaken by WDC for
2025/6 is £335,160.

Page 24



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

4.3  Parking fee charges generate approximately £1 million per year of
revenue for the Council.

4.4  The estimated capital costs for the installation of ANPR at the 3 Car
Parks is £100K with an anticipated annual revenue cost of £15k for
maintenance.

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The legal framework for enforcement authorities in England comprises
Part 6 of the Traffic Management Act 2004.

5.2 In 2012, BDC applied for decriminalised parking in the District. This
process included an application form submission to the Department for
Transport (DfT) which was completed by WCC and BDC. WCC led on
this application as it mainly focusses on On Street enforcement (public
highway) although Off Street (car parks) were also included as the
whole enforcement operation was decriminalised.

5.3 BDC operates a system of providing Off-Street parking for residents
and visitors under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. The legislation
allows the Council to designate Off-Street car parks (Section 32) and
regulate their operation, including the levying of charges through a
Local Parking Order.

5.4  The contract for the service provider to undertake these works will be
signed in due course, on final agreement of the terms and conditions. It
is proposed that the new SLA is set up as a 4-year agreement with an
annual review of outputs and outcomes.

5.5  Any decision regarding amendments to the SLA and / or termination
will be undertaken in conjunction with Legal Services.

5.6  The Police are responsible for dangerous parking, obstruction and
vehicles parked on white zig zags. Section 137 of the Highways Act
1980 makes it an offence to wilfully obstruct the highway. Regulation
103 of the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986
creates the offence of unnecessary obstruction.

6. OTHER - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Council Priority

6.1 Infrastructure — By enabling car parking provision that is good quality,
affordable and can accommodate demand it helps residents and
visitors to access services within our local communities. The contents
of this report therefore support the Council’s priority of infrastructure.

Page 25



Agenda Item 10b

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 12th February 2025

Climate Change Implications

6.2  There are no Climate Change implications in renewing the SLA.
However, by introducing the MiPermit, the virtual permit system has
resulted in the reduced amount of paper required for parking tickets
and permits, together with Residents’ Parking Permits. In addition, the
report details implications in relation to the ECVI system and
opportunities in this context could have a beneficial impact on carbon
emissions in the district.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.3 Inrespect of the option to close the Shopmobility Service an Equality
Impact Assessment has been undertaken. It proposes that Officers
would consult directly with the users who are potentially impacted.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 Risks associated with the delivery of Car Parking Enforcement are
identified in Appendix 5 depending on the option taken by Cabinet on
future provision of this services.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1
Strategic Review (Waterman Infrastructre and Environment)

Appendix 2
Car Park Management (Waterman Infrastructre and Environment)

Appendix 3
On Street Enforcement — (Waterman Infrastructre and
Environment)

Appendix 4
Bromsgrove PCN Information — Quarterly Summary

Appendix 5
Options Appraisal for Car Park Enforcement (Exempt Information).

Appendix 6
Consultancy Fees (Exempt Information)

Page 26



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2025/6 TO 2027/8 — Tranche 2

Relevant Portfolio Holder Clir. Steve Colella, Finance Portfolio Holder
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Debra Goodall

Report Author | Job Title: Assistant Director Finance & Customer Services
email:Debra.goodall@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Contact Tel:
Wards Affected N/A
Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A
Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) All

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) 3 of Part |
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  The Council has set its budget in two Tranches this year as it did in the
2024/5 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) process. The initial Tranche
was published in December 2024 and approved initial pressures and
increases at Council in January. This second Tranche is being considered
now that the final Local Government Settlement figures are known. The final
budget will be approved at Council in February.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet are asked to Recommend to Council that:

1 The Tranche 2 growth proposals.

2 The additional funding to the Council as per the final Local Government
Settlement, including the estimated levels for 2026/7 and 2027/8.

3 The Tranche 2 savings proposals, including an increase of Council Tax of
2.99%.

4 Approve the Commercial and Worcestershire Regulatory Services fee
increases for 2025/26.

5 The updated five year Capital Programme 2025/6 to 2029/30 along with its
ongoing revenue costs.

6 The levels of Earmarked Reserve being carried forward into future years
and the setting up of the Property and ERP Reserves..

7 The level of General Fund balances following additions from the 2025/6
MTFP.

8 Members take account of any feedback from the Tranche 2 consultation

process undertaken.

Page 27



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

3.1

Cabinet note that:

. Members understand and accept the implications set out in the S151 Officers

Robustness (S25) Statement of this 2025/26 to 2027/28 Medium Term
Financial plan in moving the Council to financial sustainability.

. The need for accelerated business cases to be worked up to enable upgrades

of infrastructure to the District for consideration in line with work set out in
paragraph 3.19 for completion prior to vesting day.

Background

Introduction

The Council sets a 3-year Medium Term Financial Plan every year, with the
final Council Tax Resolution being approved by Council in February. This
year’s process has been more difficult due to the following factors:

e The starting point from the 2024/5 MTFP is positive with respective neutral
balances at the starting points for both years.

e That this is the first budget of a new National Government and will be for
only 1 year in duration. The Government have indicated that resources are
tight which has been reflected in the Provisional Local Government
Settlement in December.

e The present cost of living crisis which continues to impact our most
vulnerable residents.

e Three years accounts (2020/21 to 2022/23) delivered with a “disclaimer
Opinion” and 2023/24 Accounts also likely to have a similar opinion. In this
instance, the reason for this will be the limitation of scope imposed by
statute (not by the local authority). A disclaimer due to the backstop does
not of itself indicate a local authority failing but the ongoing implications
are still not clear.

e The continued uncertainty of the existing movement of the Government to
funding projects for specific outcomes and the movement of this from a
bidding process to an “allocations” process.

e Uncertainty over the final mode of working for the Council and what will be
required by the new Government, our residents and our Members.

e Loss of key personnel, present vacancies rates (although only half the
national average), and staff retention — linked to the Workforce Strategy.

e Business Rates and Council Tax Income — and associated collection rates
and reliefs linked to the “cost of living” crisis and C-19 grants working their
way through our system.

¢ Inflation is now moving back to the Government target of 2%.

As such, it is prudent to split the budget process into two tranches,

Page 28



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

¢ Having an initial Tranche which seeks to close as much of the deficit as
possible using information known as at the end of October and seeking
approval for those savings to be implemented at Council in January,

e Having a second Tranche after the Christmas break, for which approval
will be sought in February, that takes account of the Local Government
Settlement whose final detail will not be known until early January.

3.2  This report will set out:

The approved Tranche 1 Position including base assumptions.
The impact of the Local Government Settlement.

Council Priorities

Strategic Approach

The final Tranche 2 three year balanced budget, including updated
assumptions.

Impact of Tranche 2 on Reserves and Balances.

The 5 year Capital Programme.

The Risk Assessment

The S151 Officers Robustness Statement

Consultation Details.

The approved Tranche 1 Position including base assumptions.

3.3 ltis important to set out the base assumptions under which the budget is
constructed. These assumptions can then be stress tested for various
scenarios to test the robustness of the overall budget. The Tranche 1 base
assumptions were:

e Council Tax — Figures assume the full 1.99% allowable increase over all
years of the 3 year MTFP. The Local plan has housing increases of 457
and 338 in the first two years of the MTFP. For prudence, at the moment it
is assumed that increases of 200 and 150 over these years.

e Business Rates Increases — business rates assume growth based on
Pooling with the other Districts and the County Council.

e New Homes Bonus/Government Grants — It is assumed that levels would
be the same as previous years.

e Pension Fund assumptions takes account of the latest triennial valuation
which was received in September 2022. It was noted that there is a
significant risk is that the next revaluation will be actioned in 2026 and as
such the 2026/7 figure could well change pending the outcome of that
exercise.

3.4  The following “generic” pressures and savings were included in Tranche 1:

e The Pay Award is increased from 2% to 3% for 25/6. This would be an
additional £154k cost.

Page 29



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

3.5

e Pension Fund Actuarial Triennial Revaluation. Although the fund
continues to perform well we are concerned on the reducing numbers of
live members in the scheme and so have included an amount from 2026/7
of £200k as a potential risk.

e Fees and Charges assumed an increase of 2%. However, given 50% of
fees and charges costs link to staff costs and these possibly will increase
at 5% for the 2024/5 financial year. Therefore, to keep pace this this
increase of costs it is proposed that a 4% increase is made.

e The largest change however will link to upcoming Waste Requirements.
The Council is required to implement these proposals from April 2026. The
impact on Council budgets is significant in terms of both Revenue and
Capital with an ongoing £950k revenue cost, £95K Capital costs and one
off implementation costs of £100k.

e Bromsgrove School loses its Business Rates reliefs as part of the Budget.
This relief of circa £500k would become part of the collection fund
calculation with for planning purposes circa 50% coming to the Council
and 50% going back to the Government.

e Additional Artrix Costs at £31k a year.

e Additional inflation of 5% on contract is included at 5% which is £90k.

e A review has been undertaken of Corporate Budgets (Council
Tax/Business Rate, Investment Income and Debt) against expected
numbers and due to a number of factors there is a positive position.

e The Council had 4% in to cover staff inflation in 2024/5. This pay award is
now circa 5% and so this adjustment has also been made in the corporate
budgets.

Departmental changes, due to contract pressures and demographics have
also been taken into account. These departmental changes result in an
overall £1.387m revenue pressure in the 2025/6 financial year and then £938k
by 2027/8. The overall Tranche 1 Position is summarised in the following Two
tables, the first taking account of “Corporate” issues, the second then adding
on the “Departmental” issues.

Page 30



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12" February 2025
Year i 2025/6 '2026!7 i 2027/8
£000 £000 £000
Opening Position 8 7 7
Changes
Increase Pay Award to 3% 154 154 154
Pension Revaluation (addn costs) 200 200
Increase Fees and Charges to 4% -200 -200 -200
Increased Waste Interest costs 27 27 27
Increased Waste MRP costs 68 68
Waste Project costs (capitalised) 20 20
Increased Waste Revenue costs 950 950
School Business Rates -250 -250 -250
Artrix Maximum Costs 31 31 31
Contract Inflation 90 90 90
Improvements in Corporate Budgets -343 -393 -607
1% Additional 24/5 Payoll cost over Budget 154 154 154
Net additional Costs =337 851 637
Updated Position -329 858 644
Year i 2025/6 '2026;‘7 i 2027/8
£000 £000 £000
Position after Corporate Iltems -329 858 644
Departmental Items 1,387 976 938
Position after Departmental ltems 1,058 1,834 1,582

3.6

3.7

Table 1 Tranche 1 Position

At Tranche 1, there is a £1m deficit to be closed which rises to an ongoing
£1.5m problem in 2027/8. £1m of this amount from 2026/7 onwards is linked
to the impact of the changes to Waste Regulations.

The impact of the Local Government Settlement

The Chancellors Autumn Statement was made on the 30t October had the
following impacts on Council budgets:

A 3.2% real-terms increase in Core Spending Power (CSP) for the whole
sector in 2025-26. This will include £1.3b additional grant funding, of
which at least £600m will be directed to social care.

The Budget was silent on council tax referendum limits, but the DCN
expectation is that referendum principles will stay at 2.99% for districts.
£233m new funding for homelessness prevention. This will be in addition
to the £1.3b grant funding mentioned above.

£1b to extend the Household Support Fund and Discretionary Housing
Payments into 2025-26.

£1.1b new funding through implementation of the Extended Producer
Responsibility scheme for recycling.

Page 31



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

¢ Right to Buy: councils will be permanently allowed to retain 100% of
receipts locally and discount levels will revert to pre-2012 levels from 21st
November.

e Business Rates support to the retail, hospitality and Leisure sector,
although it is not known the route of compensation yet for Councils.

e A £500m increase to the Affordable Homes Programme in 2025-26.

e UK Shared Prosperity Fund has been extended for 2025-26 at a reduced
level of £900m, a 40% decrease on the current year. It is not yet clear
whether this funding will continue.

e Employer national insurance (NI) contributions will increase by 1.2% to
15% from April 2025 but councils are expected to be reimbursed for this.
The impact of this on Bromsgrove if this was not funded is £144k.

e The National Living Wage will increase by 6.7% to £12.21. Minimum wage
for 18- to 20-yearolds will increase by 16% to £10 per hour.

3.8 The Provisional Local Government Settlement was made on the 18"
December 2024. In that settlement the Councils Core Sending Power is
unchanged at £13.42m. However, this zero increase in spending power
masks a significant change in funding with Councils expected have a 2.99%
increase in Council Tax to get to that Break Even position, with “Other Grants”
reducing by a corresponding amount. As the Council, as other Councils,
already assume, maximising Council Tax increases in their existing forward
plans this is settlement with no inflation built in. This is reflected in the
following table:

2025/6 2024/5 Difference Difference

£m £m % £m
Settlement Fund
Assessment 2.02 1.983 1.9% 0.037
Assumed Council Tax 9.836 9.499 3.5% 0.337
Other Grants 1.564 1.937 -19.3% -0.373

Settlement Control
Totals 13.42 13.419 0.0% 0.001

Table 2 Local Government Settlement Figures

3.9 Assetoutin 3.7 above, the Government have however given specific
targeted Grant Funding for a number of initiatives. This funding is single year,
as Local Government Funding is being significantly changes for the 2026/7
settlement. However, the impacts on the Council for this targeted funding is:
e £700m additional grant funding — Bromsgrove has not received any
additional Grant Funding.
e Council Tax in Tranche 2 will be increased from 1.99 to 2.99%.
e £233m additional Homelessness Prevention Grant. Bromsgrove has
received £349k, which is £88k more than in reports discussed and
approved in December.

Page 32



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

e £1.1b new funding through implementation of the Extended Producer
Responsibility scheme for recycling. Bromsgrove has received
£1,004k which is included in the Tranche 2 budget proposals.

e Right to Buy changes are not applicable for Bromsgrove.

e Business Rates support to the retail, hospitality and Leisure sector is
expected to be neutral and Government Funded.

e UK Shared Prosperity Fund has been extended for 2025-26 at a
reduced level of £900m. Bromsgrove has received £918k split
Revenue £748k and Capital £170k.

3.10 In addition to those items set out above, following the World Climate
Conference in December there are likely to be ongoing targets in this area.
Councils have already declared “Climate Emergencies” and have challenging
carbon reduction targets to deliver by 2030, 2040 and 2050. At the moment
plans are within existing budgets, but as we move through the next three-year
period there will be the requirement for the prioritisation of resources and
approval of additional funding on a scheme by scheme basis. These will need
to be taken account of in future budgets, although a significant part of this
budget spend will be Capital in nature.

3.11 There are a number of other significant factors in looking at the 24/5 budget
which are linked to the Local Government Finance Market. Presently:

e There are a number of Local Authorities who have now issued S114
Statements.

e Although Bromsgrove is now up to date with its accounts, these accounts
have “Disclaimer Opinions” and it is likely that the Council will receive
“Disclaimer Opinions” for at least the 23/4 and 24/.5 Accounts. The
ramifications of these “disclaimer Opinions” on the wider Local
Government Sector and individual Councils is not clear. There will be circa
600 of these “Disclaimer Opinions” across English Councils.

e The Government Devolution Bill and the reorganisation of two tiered areas
to unitary authorities by the end of this Governments first term. This will
have significant impact on Worcestershire Councils.

3.12 Significant Grant levels not set out in 3.9 above are:

Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy - £146,878
Discretionary Housing Payments - £62,332

Discretionary Housing Payments Administration - £11,114
New Burdens Funding (UC) £2,770

Revenue Support Grant £118,000

New Homs Bonus £24,000

Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Grant £36,000
Funding Floor (formally Funding Guarantee) £1,111,000
S31 Grant Funding for Business Rates Subsidy (RHL) will be base on the
NNRAL1 forms

Page 33



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

e National Insurance Contribution — The Final Local Government Settlement
on the 3" February allocated a sum of £0.1m. This is circa £200k less
than the Councils requirements and this difference is reflected as an
additional pressure.

e Housing Benefit Subsidy £11,192,229 (24/5 level — 25/6 level not known)

e Disabled Facilities Grant - £1,285,847 (up from £1,130,316) — Capital
e Capital DEFA allocation for Food Waste Bins/Vehicles £902,511 - Capital

3.13 As part of the Budget process the following reports have been approved in the
January 2025 Cycle of meetings:
e The Council Tax Base for 2025/26.
e The final Council Tax Support Scheme for 2025/26.

The following reports linked to the budget were updated in the 2024/25 MTFP
and have not changed since that time:

e The Discretionary Council Tax Reduction Policy.

e Council Tax — Empty Homes Discounts and Premiums.

e Non Domestic Rates — Discretionary Rates Relief Policy.

Council Strategic Priorities

3.14 The Leader and Cabinet, with the support of the Corporate Management Team,
have updated the Councils Strategic Priorities and these have been approved
by Council.

3.15 The final Council Plan provided an overarching vision for the District with the
four new priorities as follows:

Economic Development
Housing

Environment
Infrastructure

Page 34



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

‘We aspire to create a welcoming environment that prioritises
quality of life, where residents and businesses feel a deep sense
of belonging and connection.’

Economic . -
Housing Environment

Development

3.16 The council’s vision, priorities and themes are connected using a ‘green’ thread:

“A green thread runs through the Council plan. Climate change and carbon
reduction are key issues within the plan and the relevant measures identified
to evaluate performance will help the Council to understand both activities and
progress in this area”.

3.17 Opportunities and Challenges highlighted in the plan include:

The opportunities include:

e The location of Bromsgrove for business; with Worcestershire, regionally
and beyond.

The entrepreneurial and community spirit within Bromsgrove District.
Keeping businesses in the district when they grow.

The amazing natural environment of the district.

The creative options provided through new technologies to enhance our
services and our customers experiences.

The challenges include:

e The ongoing financial challenge- to both the organisation but also our
communities and residents through the real pressures presented by cost of
living and the housing market.

e Continuing to support those who are most vulnerable, and manage the
increasing costs.

e Keeping businesses in the District when they grow.

e Understanding the different community needs across the district

e The need for enhanced digital and physical connectivity.

3.18 The council cannot deliver all priorities on its own. In some cases, it can support,

influence, or work collaboratively with other partner agencies to persuade them
to take a particular course of action/undertake a particular

Page 35



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

project. Considerable support and input from partner organisations will be
needed for priorities to be successfully achieved.

3.19 We talk in the Risk section about the impending Devolution of powers in Local
Government and the setting up of Unitary Councils in existing 2 tier areas
before the close of this Parliament. This will have a significant impact on the
Council. In light of this, the Council is reviewing schemes that can be delivered
and completed within the next three years to ensure that a legacy of a
sustainable attractive Bromsgrove is transferred on vesting day with
infrastructure and amenities reflecting stakeholder requirements to make a
difference to the residents of Bromsgrove’s lives. Initiatives under review for
inclusion and approval following updated business cases are:

e Full funding of the 10 year play strategy agreed by Council in 2024 (only 5
years are in the present capital programme) including non-Council assets
set out in that report.

e Bromsgrove Town Centre public realm — continuation of improvements on
the high street, Church Street, Mill Lane, Worcester Road. Resurfacing,
street furniture and lighting upgrade, and possible acquisitions to deliver
further regeneration. C.£2m

e Rubery — high street design feasibility study to create central plaza/meeting
space and reconfigure parking — c.£120k.

e Work in other centres although this will need to link with Parish Councils and
un-Parished areas who also have responsibilities.

e Full programmes of litter bin replacement.

e Investment to upgrade our parks facilities.

e Investment in a new Depot to reflect differing needs for services and
vehicles in the future.

Strategic Approach

3.20 The Council has come into the 2025/26 budget process with a number of
conflicting issues. These include:

e An ongoing in year 2024/25 deficit at Q2 of a £344k to close.

e The requirement to fund future pay award which are circa 50% of costs.
Over the past 3 years these pay awards have been significantly higher than
“‘normal”. Although nationally agreed, these have not been funded.

e Increases in Council Tax are limited at 2.99%, which is significantly lower
than the present rates of inflation.

e The fact that Local Government Finance will change significantly in the
2025/6 settlement which is not known at the moment and which is multi year.

e That over the course of this Parliament all 2 tier areas, such as
Worcestershire will be converted into Unitary Authorities.

3.21 The next section sets out the Tranche 2 position. In it the Council moves to a

considered sustainable position over the 3 year planning period. One
significant factor that has been taken account of is the fact that Local

Page 36



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

Government funding will change significantly in 2026/27 and so in this budget
it is prudent to minimise any savings pending the upcoming funding review.

3.22 The level of reserves and balances presently held suggest that although
significantly more is held than the suggested 5% recommended level for the
General Fund, that any calls on this amount for a significant emergency
situation would reduce levels by possibly 50%.

3.23 The Council must adapt how it operates to take advantage of customer
requirements, technology, available resources, and the economic and
environmental conditions to remain a sustainable viable organisation. To
ensure this happens there will be the need for future investment, efficiencies
and possibly the requirement to fund redundancy (both from reserves and
balances).

3.24 As set out later in the Robustness Statement, in compiling Tranchel of the
budget, assumptions were based on the best information held then. Issues
the Council is facing are not unique, they are being faced by almost all
Councils. Tranche 2 of the budget has adjusted for any funding that the
Government will provide but primarily sets out other options to close the
Tranche 1 deficit,

The final Tranche 2 three year balanced budget, including updated
assumptions

3.25 The Council started Tranche 2 of the Budget with the following financial
deficits to close:

Year i 2025/6 r21]26;'?’ i 2027/8
£000 £000 £000
Position after Corporate ltems -329 858 644
Departmental ltems 1,387 976 938
Position after Departmental ltems 1,058 | 1,834 1,582

Table 3 Opening Tranche 2 Position

3.26 The financial settlement, as set out in paragraphs 3.9 and 3.10 above had no
increase in overall funding and a number of areas of specific targeted funding:

3.27 The Council has assessed a number of other options to move to what it
believes is a considered sustainable position over the 3 year planning period.
This process has the following additional Income

e Council Tax — The Government expects as part of the Local

Government Settlement for all Councils to increase Council Tax levels
by the maximum 2.99%. The Council assumed a 1.99% increase in

Page 37



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

Tranche 1 and so this increases that level by £96k to come in line with
Government expectations

e Actuarial Changes from 2026. Following a conversation with the new
Actuary and the Worcestershire Treasurers at the end of November,
expectations are now that in the 2026 Triennial Revaluation there will be
minimal increases. This saves £150k

e ERP Funding Allocations — the Council have received £1,004k in ERP
Funding. As per the table below, this will be allocated over the three
year funding period with £250k allocated for specific marketing initiatives
to move the initiative forward across all sectors.

e 24/25 Salary Adjustment — Now that actual salary increases have been
allocated for 2024/25 as part of the December payroll, this savings can
be made

e Capitalisation of Salaries — The Council should be allocating staff costs
to capital projects. It has not done this in the past. At the moment an
assumption of a 5% recharge has been made, — this needs to be
sustainable over time. These capitalisation amount have been added to
the capital programme.

e One Off Funding from the Finance Reserve. There are finance specific
items in the departmental pressures that are one off in nature. These
can be funded from the Earmarked Finance Reserve.

e Departmental Efficiencies — to balance the overall budget, there is the
requirement for departmental efficiencies to be made. These are
highlighted in the following table:

Net Savings

Service Budget £250k
BDC Regulatory 384 7
Business Transformation & OD 1,874 36
Chief Exec 893 17
Housing and Community Services 1,182 23
Environmental Services 4,138 80
Finance & Customer Services 1,442 28
Legal & Democratic 1,111 21
Planning and Leisure 1,241 24
Regeneration and Property 726 14
Totals 12,991 250

Table 4 — Departmental Efficiencies

e Savings on the VM Ware Contract — it was expected that this contract
would have a 10 fold increase with a change of supplier but in December
we were able to limit the increase to a far smaller increase.

And the following additional costs

Page 38



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

e Replacement Bins — Bromsgrove are now the only Council in England
with its type of Bin. This is limiting the options in the purchasing of the
Refuse Fleet. There was a report that went to Cabinet on the 6" January
setting out the issues.

e WRS Uplift for Inflation — these are the agreed increases approved at
the WRS Board in November 2024.

e Local Government Settlement Costs — these now reflect the changes to
funding in the 2025/26 Local Government Financial Settlement. The
most significant is the £352k reduction in Government Grants.

e The Sunrise Project - The project focusses on supporting the most
vulnerable and complex customers often known to organisations for
repeat and reactive demands and identified as having a high level of
contact with multiple partner agencies. The expenditure will improve the
financial sustainability and health and wellbeing of residents, and in
particular those more vulnerable residents. The project is tenure blind
and includes the provision of access to courses to improve employment
opportunities and quality of life.

e The Final Local Government Settlement on the 3" February allocated
the Council £0.1m for the National Insurance changes. This is £200k
less than the Council’s requirements and this difference is shown now
as a pressure.

3.28 The net effects of these changes is summarised in the table below. Overall
there is a net £167k deficit in 2025/26, increasing to £1030k in 2026/27, before
reducing to £399k in 2027/28. This is an overall call on general fund reserves

of £1,596k.
2025/6 | 2026/7 | 2027/8
Year
£000 £000 £000
Position after Departmental Items 1,058 | 1,834 | 1,582
Additional 1% Council Tax -96 -96 -96
Adjustment for Actuaries figures -150 -150
glelgcéarl\tllgn of ERP Funding from 335 335
Updated ERP Adjustment -100 -115 -115
Salary Adjustment 24/5 -150 -150 -150
Capitalisation at 2.5% -375 -375 -375
Capitalisation to 5.00% -375 -375- -375
Finance Reserve -289
CMT £250k Efficiencies -250 -250 -250
VM Ware Contract Savings -120 -120 -120
ERP Spend on Communications (TBC) 100 100 50
Replacement Bin Requirements 120 420 420
WRS Agreed Uplifts 29 29 29

Page 39




Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025
Increased Council Tax Budget 26 23 -307
Reduced Government Grant 352 352 352
The Sunrise Project 37 38 39
Further National Insurance requirement | 200 200 200
Updated Totals 167 1,030 399

Additional Grant Allocations

UK Shared Prosperity Fund - Revenue 748

UK Shared Prosperity Fund - Capital 169
ERP Allocation - 1 Year only to 1,004
Reserve

Local Plan — Green Belt Reviews 70

Table 5 Tranche 2 Position
3.29 Appendix A sets out the Departmental Budgets.
Updated Fees and Charges

3.30 The Council has commercial rates it charges for its commercial Environmental
Services Customers. These are set out in confidential Appendix B.

3.31 In addition, updated Worcestershire Regulatory Service Charges are set out
for approval in Appendix C. These are increased in line with increases in the
service across the County which are at the 4% level unless set by statute.

Impact of Tranche 2 on Reserves and Balances

3.32 The existing 24/25 MTFP saw general fund balances at a break even position
over the three year planning moving the Council towards sustainability. In the
2023/24 budget, the Council was prudent and reviewed all its earmarked
Reserves and reallocated a substantial amount to the General Fund and also
a newly formed Utilities Reserve due to the significant pressure on budgets in
that area. As we have moved into 2024/25 there have been additional
inflationary pressures linked to significant unfunded nationally agreed staffing
increases. This has been partly offset by the Utilities Reserves. Years 2 and
3 of this reserve are not now required and have been transferred to the
General Fund to bolster its position.

3.33 The projected 2025/6 to 2027/7 position, at Tranche 1, had £3,050k of
pressures to mitigate. This has been mitigated down in Tranche 2 to a
£1,596k overall pressure over the three years with an ongoing issue of £399k
a year to resolve in 2027/28 onwards. This is a slightly different approach to

Page 40



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

the previous two MTFP’s where the Councils have moves to a “sustainable
position” over the three year period but reflects that fact that Local
Government will have a new 3 year settlement from the 2026/7 financial year
and with those allocation methods only being consulted on in the Spring of
2025. It would not be prudent to balance the budget by reducing services
when the new settlement might have those services as a priority area.

3.34 Presently, the General Fund sits at a value of £12.781 (taking account of the
Tranche 2 position) at the 315t March 2028. This sum is over 25% of gross
expenditure and significantly above the 5% benchmark quoted by the
Government a being a minimum requirement. If Housing Benefit payments,
which are passported through the Council are ignored than this percentage
rises to over 30% of expenditure.

3.35 The Council has now closed its accounts up to the 2022/23 financial year and
has received “Disclaimer Opinions” for those three years. Because those
years are now closed there is certainty over the Earmarked Reserve balances
which at the 31st March 2028 sit at a value of £9.484m.

3.36 This Earmarked Reserves level of £9.484m assumes that all Ward budgets
are funded from the Financial Services Reserve.

3.37 Specific Reserves will be set up for the following purposes
e £100K for a review of the Property function
e An ERP Reserve of £1,004K to transfer the grant funding for ERP
schemes and release it over the three year MTFP period.

The detailed position in respect of Reserves is set out in Appendix D.

The 5 Year Capital Programme

3.38 The Council over the past number of years has not spent its capital
programme allocations in year. A review has been carried out of
e All schemes that have not started (both from 23/24 and from previous
years)
e Schemes that have started
To assess deliverability and links to revised strategic priorities.

3.39 Present rationale is for any scheme not yet started (unless grant or S106
funded) to rebid for funds as part of the 2025/26 budget process. The
Summary Capital Programme is set out in the following Table:

Table 6 Summary Capital Programme

3.40 The priority in capital terms is for the Council to spend its grant funding. It has
the following:

Page 41



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025
Year |Total Programme| Revised Total |Council Funded Grant Funded
2024/5 6,376,987 21,267,936 10,996,671 10,271,265
Carry Fwd 14,890,949
2025/6 17,351,727 8,017,369 9,334,358
2026/7 3,222,841 2,422,841 300,000
2027/8 2,469,459 1,669,459 800,000
2028/9 2,310,531 1,510,531 800,000
2029/30 2,373,749 1,573,749 800,000

Table 6 Capital Programme

e Levelling Up of £16.1m (£14.5m Grant, £1,6m Council) which now needs
to be spent by the 30" September 2025 (being the Market Hall Scheme)

e UK Shared Prosperity Funding of £918k for 2025/26 — which is one year
only funding.

3.41 Appendix E sets out the present capital programme to be agreed.

3.42 The following are the changes between what was presented in Tranche 1 and
the present:

e The items carried forward from 2023/24 to 2024/25 have been fully
reviewed and updated as part of the Closure of Accounts 2023/24
process.

e The requirement of a firewall for Parkside at £9,750 has ben integrated
into the programme.

e The requirement for an additional £25k a year for laptops for new
starters has also been integrated into the programme.

e The Market Hall redevelopment has been reprofiled and overall shows
a £1.4m deficit, which presently is being funded by the Council.

e The requirement to replace the Wheely Bin fleet has been added at a
cost of £2.2m as per the Cabinet Report of the 6" January 2025.

e Updated funding for 2025/6 has been added for both UKSPF and DFG
Budgets.

e The Government funding for the new Food Waste Service (Vehicles
and Containers has been added at £902k. This is still over £500k short
of our overall requirement.

e The updated play audit implementation profile from the December 2024
report has been added — no change was required for the revenue
funding assumptions.

¢ Inclusion of the capitalisation of salaries.

3.43 The significant Council spending continues to be the Fleet Replacement
Programme although it is slipping into the future as we await the
Governments final Environment Bill and confirmation of the type of vehicles
required after 2030.

Page 42



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

3.44 The Council is undertaking a review of all its assets, linked to the requirement
of Council buildings to be at Level C Energy Efficiency. A report is expected
early in 2025 setting the Councils fixed asset approach.

3.45 The Capital Programme is very closely linked to the Asset Strategy, Treasury
Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Asset
Investment Strategy. These Strategies set out how the Council can invest
and borrow funds and to whom. They are set out in Appendices F, G, H and
|. These Strategies have been reviewed by the Audit, Standards and
Governance Committee in January 2024.

The Risk Assessment

3.46 As set out in this Report we are budgeting in a time of extreme uncertainty:

e There having been a change of National Government and this being
their first year of being the administration since 2010.

e The 2025/6 Local Government Financial Settlement is only for one year
and overall have a £352k reduction in central grants.

e There will be a new financial settlement formula in 2026/7, which will
be for three years, but the make-up of this settlement formula will only
start to be consulted on in the spring of 2025.

e The Government have also announced significant reorganisation of the
Local Government Sector with Worcestershire which is 2 tier moving to
a Unitary setup by the end of this Parliament. At the present time, the
format of Unitary Councils in Worcestershire is unclear as are the rules
in relation to use of Reserves and Balances in the intermediate period
and the obvious impact on the Councils Staff, Members and present
Stakeholders.

e The status of Councils with “Disclaimer Opinions” on their accounts. It
is understood there will be over 500 of these opinions across English
Councils.

e The ongoing issue of Funding, with the care element of Local
Government taking more over the “overall” resource pot on a yearly
basis leaving less for other services we provide to the public.

3.47 As per the Risk Reports that are reported to Audit, Governance and
Standards and Committee there are the following specific Risks linked to
finance:

e Resolution of the approved budget position.

e Financial process rectification (in relation to the 2020/21 Accounts and
subsequent years not being approved — which is close to some sort of
resolution with the “Disclaimer Opinions”).

e Decisions made to address financial pressures and implementing new
projects that are not informed by robust data and evidence.

e Adequate workforce planning.

Page 43



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

3.48 In addition, in this time of uncertainty the Council will also need to embed a
new Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Resources, both
of whom have been appointed in January 2025 and will start after their
respective notice periods.

3.49 There are the core risks of implementation of any Council financial plan in
that:

e Any savings proposal must pass the S151 Officers tests for robustness
and delivery. If items are not deliverable or amounts not obtainable,
they cannot be included.

e Implementation of savings to time and budget — there must be full
implementation processes documented to ensure implementation
within timescales.

e Non delivery is a high risk - Savings are tracked and reviewed on a
guarterly basis at the Audit Standards and Governance Committee to
ensure implementation happens based on the plans and the
assumptions will become part of the Council’s core processes.

e Loss of key personnel will be crucial, especially given the impending
Local Government Reorganisation and mitigation plans will need to be
drawn up which in themselves will require resources to administer and
deliver.

e Change of corporate direction/priorities given the upcoming changes in
the sector.

The S151 Officers Robustness Statement

3.50 For Tranche 2, the opinion of the Interim Director of Finance is that the risks
contained in the 2025/26 budget estimates have been minimised as far as is
possible.

3.51 In the past two years the Council have moved to the delivery of sustainable
budgets however these have been impacted by three years of Pay Awards far
in excess to those ever seen in Local Government. This, given the fact that
staffing costs are approaching 50% of overall costs, has had a significant
impact on council budgets over this period leading to in year overspend
positions and has required subsequent mitigation in following years budgets.

3.52 Although inflation is reducing in the UK, given wider economic events and
changes in other countries Governments and the move to more nationalistic
policies it is not clear if inflation in particular will move back to being
consistently within the Government’s 2% target. This impacts Council costs
but also those who have the requirement to use our services.

3.53 Employee budgets are almost 50% of the Council’s costs. Over the past 18

months there has been a significant move to fill establishment positions.
However, the Council is still running at levels of vacancy of around 100

Page 44



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

against an overall joint establishment of 850 and using considerable agency
resource to ensure services are maintained. This attracts additional short term
cost and the Workforce Strategy, implemented in 2023, is starting to mitigate
this. This is shown in the Councils staff turnover figure being 50% of the
National average at just over 7%. However, this remains the most significant
financial risk to the Council.

3.54 The next most significant financial risk was the fact that that the Council had
not been able to present its 20/21, 21/22 and 22/23 Accounts for Audit, and
the possible inaccuracy of opening balances used in budgetary data. These
three years have now been completed under the new “backstop” regulations,
but because of the national audit Issues the Council has received “Disclaimer
Opinions” for all three years. There are circa 500 of these opinions for
English Councils and it is not clear of the implications of this on Councils and
the wider sector. What the closure process has highlighted, now it has been
completed for these years, is that the Council is in a stronger position in terms
of reserves than was the started position. The 2023/4 Accounts have also
now been completed and presented for Audit within the new “Backstop”
requirements.

3.55 The revenue budget and capital programme have been formulated having
regard to several factors including:

Funding Available.

Inflation.

Risks and Uncertainties.

Priorities.

Service Pressures.

Commercial Opportunities.

Operating in a Post C-19 environment.

3.56 The MTFP highlights that the current financial position has moved, following
the Local Government Settlement, to a position of requiring £1.596m of
funding from General Fund Reserves over the three year period. Thisis a
departure from the previous two years where the Council has tried to move to
a more ongoing sustainable position. The reason for this movement in the
short term is that
e In year three 2027/28, the ongoing deficit to close going forward is £399k.
e That the Local Government Financial Settlement methodology will
significantly change in 2026/27, and it would not be sensible to make
savings where those services might need to be re-instated.

e That the general fund will still be at a strong level — at £12.781m after
allowing for this support which is well above 25% of gross turnover.

3.57 The Council has reviewed the Councils position in line with the CIPFA
Resilience Index. The data for the resilience index is obtained from the
Revenue Expenditure and Financing England Outturn Report 2023-24 (‘RO
Forms') and reflects figures submitted by Local Authorities to MHCLG,

Page 45



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

published on 12 December 2024. The Council in comparison to its nearest
neighbours and levels of risk:
e Has lower risk in terms of levels of reserves, interest payable, levels of
debt, and growth being above the baseline.
e Has a slightly higher than average fees and charges to Services
expenditure ratio.

This reflects that fact that the Council has no long terms debt and reasonable
levels of General Fund and Earmarked Reserves. With fees and charges,
these are the only real avenue to revenue increases given the limits on
Council Tax rises.

3.58 In line with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, this report of the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) sets out the robustness of estimates included in
the budget and the adequacy of the Council’s reserves.

The Chief Financial Officer’s opinion is that the estimates are robust

3.59 Relevant budget holders are responsible for individual budgets and their
preparation. All estimates are then scrutinised by Financial Services staff and
the Corporate Management Team prior to submission to Members.

3.60 The two tranche 2025/26 budget process has ensured that all budget
assumptions have been reviewed and reconsidered by Officers, and then
Members, through the Finance and Budget Scrutiny Working Group,
Cabinet and Council.

3.61 The budget has a £1.596m call on General Fund Reserves over the three
year period but by year 3 does start to move to a more sustainable position.
More work will need to be done to embed changes to ensure financial
sustainability is embedded across the organisation, especially with the change
coming forward for Local Government in terms of Funding and Structure.

Adequacy of Reserves

3.62 Budget and MFTP proposals forecast the level of General Fund balances
at £12.781m as at 31st March 2028 which is over five times the
recommended 5% of net level as set out in the Reserves section.

3.63 The present positive medium term financial position, takes into account the
updated position in terms of accounts now being closed to the 2023/24
financial year however the “Disclaimer Opinions” still give the potential of
possible issues with Opening Balances. It is prudent for the Council to build
reserves as they are the Council’s single source of funding for business
change initiatives.

3.64 Further work will be undertaken to ensure that expenditure levels are
sustainable and matched by income over the medium to long term. Plans are

Page 46



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

therefore in place to continue to review budgets and identify and accelerate
further savings opportunities.

Collection Fund and Precepts

3.65 The Council Tax collection fund is anticipated to be in surplus based on
December data by £0.595m, which will be distributed amongst the major
preceptors using the prescribed formulae. The Council’s share of the surplus
payable as a one-off sum in the following financial year 13% of the total which
amounts to £76k.

3.66 Worcestershire County Council, Hereford and Worcester Fire Authority and
the West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner are due to set their precepts
in the week commencing 3™ February. This will enable the Council to set the
Council Tax on 19" February 2025. The precepting bodies Council Tax
requirements will be included in the formal resolutions which will be presented
to Council on 19t February.

Consultation Details

3.67 The Council has consulted on its Tranche 1 budget. This budget consultation
opened on Thu 5 December 2024. An email invite was sent to the
Bromsgrove Community Panel. The survey was also promoted on a variety of
social media channels. The survey closed at 12noon on Thursday 2 January
2025.

3.68 The response rate for the community panel was 48%. There were a total of
278 valid responses received.

3.69 Question 16 gives the splits of Age Ranges of the people who filled out the
guestionnaire. The vast majority were over 50.

3.70 The survey asked respondents to rank the three most important services they
felt the Council should invest in. These were:
e Local Economic Development and Employment (47.1% of respondents).
e Community Safety (44.6.% of respondents).
e Maintenance of the Landscape and Environment (43.8.% of respondents)

3.71 6 questions had responses well over 50% agreeing or strongly agreeing, and
only two had responses lower than 50% - these being
e Do you agree that the Council should invest more in our front-line services
to cover increases in fuel at a 49.6% approval rate.
e Do you support fees and charges (this excludes parking) rising by 4% to
keep them in line with inflation and rising staffing costs at a 40.2%
approval rate.

Page 47



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

3.72 The highest approval rating, at 86.2% was the question - Do you agree that
the Council should invest in economic development in order to support local
businesses, start-ups, the town and local centres and to prioritise local skills.

3.73 Two further questions were asked on what level of increase to Bromsgrove
District Council's proportion of Council Tax do you support?
e 61.5% agreed of strongly agreed with a 1.99% increase.
e This dropped to 45.8% at 2.99%.

3.74 There were 2 free test questions:
e Please let us know your suggestions for investing in the district to increase
prosperity and enhance appeal for residents and businesses alike?

o There were 178 responses to this question.

o Responses to this question provided many suggestions and
comments regarding the district. The top three themes were
Bromsgrove Town Centre, supporting businesses and the
importance of infrastructure, from roads to public transport. These
themes had many cross overs, from the impact of traffic,
encouraging a diverse range of businesses into the town and
reducing costs to visitors and businesses alike.

o Suggestions included:

= Reducing business rates / relief

* Reducing parking costs

= Supporting independent retailers

= Bringing in key major retailers

= Understanding offer on High Street- too may charity shops,
cafes, hair & vaping businesses

= Utilise empty shops- for small businesses, new start-ups,
housing, community use

= Improve the market- quality, offer, number of days

= Make the town vibrant, attractive & distinctive- develop
attractions, encourage visitors

= Improve the appearance & maintenance of the high street

= Improved public transport

= Support active travel

= Access grants wherever possible

= Ensure a district-wide view

©)

e Please let us know any other comments on the budget or ideas for
reducing costs or increasing income to ensure Council services remain
sustainable?

o There were 118 responses to this questions.
o Of the responses to this question, the largest category fell into the
theme of efficiency and value for money. Other themes included

Page 48



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

infrastructure, focusing on those in need, ensuring transparency
and accountability asset utilisation, and the town centre.
o Suggestions included:

Reviewing salaries

Ensuring right skills within the council

Outsource some functions

Explore alternative methods of delivery e.g. co-operatives,
partnerships

» Reduce use of consultants

= Review fees & charges

Commercial opportunities e.g. logs, compost or specific
services

Turn off lights / utilise smart sensors

Reduce events

Promote events better to increase revenue

Community use of buildings

Energy generation e.g. solar panels in car parks
Convert buildings into housing e.g. multi-storey by Asda
Increase enforcement fines e.g. fly tipping & littering
Support the voluntary sector

Reducing business rates / relief

Review council tax

Better coordination around highways and roadworks

3.75 The consultation spreadsheet sets out the overall summary and a breakdown
by question is shown as Appendix H.

3.76 Tranche Two of the budget will be consulted on following its publication on the
4t February. Any comments will be fed into Cabinet and Council on the 19t
February 2025.

3.77 The Council will raise awareness of the budget proposals via use of social
media.

4. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

4.1  Financial implications are set out in Section 3.

Legal Implications

4.2 A number of statutes governing the provision of services covered by this
report contain express powers or duties to charge for services. Where an
express power to charge does not exist the Council has the power under
Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 to charge where the activity is

Page 49



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12™" February 2025

incidental or conducive to or calculated to facilitate the Council’s statutory
function.

Service / Operational Implications

4.3  Monitoring will be undertaken to ensure that income targets are achieved
through the Quarterly Finance and Performance Reports to Cabinet and the
Quarterly Savings Reports to Audit Standards and Governance Committee.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

4.4  The implementation of the revised fees and charges will be notified in
advance to the customer to ensure that all users are aware of the new
charges and any concessions available to them.

4.5 Initial Equalities Impact Assessments must be taken where required. None
have been required with this budget.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 ltis crucial that the Councils sets a balanced budget in order for it to deliver
sustainable services to its Stakeholders. There are significant risks in any
budget and these are set out in sections 3.44 to 3.47.

5.2  There is arisk that if fees and charges are not increased that income levels
will not be achieved, and the cost of services will increase. This is mitigated
by managers reviewing their fees and charges annually.

6. APPENDICES

Appendix A — Budgets by Department

Appendix B — Environmental Services Commercial Fees & Charges (Exempt)
Appendix C — Worcestershire Regulatory Services Fees & Charges

Appendix D — Reserves

Appendix E — 5 Year Capital Programme

Appendix F — 2025/6 Capital Strategy

Appendix G — 2025/6 Treasury Management Strategy

Appendix H- 2025/6 MRP Statement

Appendix I- 2025/6 Investment Strategy

Appendix J — Consultation Breakdown

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.
7. KEY

None

Page 50



Agenda Item 10c

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 12" February 2025

Appendix A — Budgets by Department

To Follow — being updated for NI changes following Government Advice in
Final Local Government Settlement on the 3" February 2025

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



eg abed

Appendix C — Worcestershire Regulatory Services Fees and Charges

ENVIROMMENTAL SERVICES 2023/24 2024/25 2025/286

Strav Dogs Fire [staturaru] £25.00 £25 00 £25 00
Ot of kours charge £47. 00 E50.00 £52.00
Repeat offender penalty £42.00 £45 .00 E4F7.00
Adrmiristration Charge £17.00 £18.00 £19.00
Fenmnelling per dog. per daw E18.00 E20.00 £E21.00
Fenmelling of dangerous dogs - per dog, per daw [buw £26.00 £28.00 £29 00
ternperament or breed]
Vet's Fees At cost At cost At Cost
Treatrment Costs [wormer., Flea treatment etc. ) £12.00 £13.00 £13.50
Return charge [during office hours when resource available F42 00 £45 00 F4F7 00
Penalty charge for non-compliance of kMicrochipping
regulations [not microchipped or contact details out of date) New £15.00 £16.00
or Contral of Dogs Order 1992 [ o owner contact details on N N
collar or tag)

#4600 per hour
E rwirommmerntal lnFormation wihere request relates to 'contarnination of the land' charge infF to (:D:_la[e £49.00 [Flat £51.00
Regul ations request applied to locate and provide the inforration requested. inrarmatron [_as Fee] )
estimated at ime
of reqgue=sil
R } . . Feduced Fire [Faid within 10 daws] ES0.00 E&0-100

Litterning - Fixed Penaltu hlotice

For Depo=iting Litter [sectiorn 8788

- Erwvironmental Frotection Sct

1990]
Full Fire arnount £80.00 E100-£150

Fixed Fenaltu Motice For Failure o | Reduced Firne [Paid within 10 daws] £200.00 £210.00

produce authority ['Waste

Carrier's Licence] [Section

AHEE Control of FPallution

[ Arnendment] Act 1989] Reduced

Fire [Paid within 10 daws] Full Fire Araoumt £300.00 £325.00

00T Wal| epusaby



Agenda Item 10c

Page 54



GG obed

Fixed Penaltu Maotice For Failure to
produce documentation [Waste
Transfer Notes] [Section 34(5]
and regulations made under it
SF4ENSAL Environmental
Protection ot 1330) Reduced Fine
[P aid within 10 daus)

Reduczed Fine [Paid within 10 daws]

£200.00

£210.00

Full Fine S&mount

£300.00

£325.00

Fixed Penaltu Maotics For Breach of
YWaste Duty of Care [section 3d
Ervirornmental Pratection Scc 17330]

Reduczed Fine [Paid within 10 daws]

£120-£200

Sliding scale

£100-£300

£150-£400

Flutipping — Fized Penaltu Motice
far Oepasiting Contralled wWaste
[Section 34[11(a) and Section
32N al Environmental Protection
Ace 1330

Reduczed Fine [Paid within 10 daws]

£150-£250

Full &maunt =sliding scale

£150-£400

£300-£500

Training Certificates

Health ! Expart

£35 + VAT

€100 + VAT

£ 104 + var

Annual specific erport inspection Certificate

£4728 + VAT

£457 + VAT

£ATS. 00 + vat

Per hiour [minimum 1 hoar] £50_00 £54_00 £56_00
FHRS [Food Hugiene Rating Schemel re-rating £178. 00 £130_00 £138_ 00
Food Aduizary Wisits £150.00 £160_00 £166_00

Frivate \Water Suppliss

Risk A=sses=ment per hour Iminimum 1 houar)

£59 per hour

£653 per hour

£665. 00 per houwur

Inwestigation per howr [minimum 1 howr)

£59 per hour

£53 per hour

£66_ 00 per houwr

Sranting an Authorisation per hour [minimom 1 howr]

£59 per hour

£53 per hour

£66_ 00 per houwr

Sampling Visit per hour [minimum 1 howr)

£59 per hour

£653 per hour

£66.00 per howur

Sample analusis per sample taken

£33 .00 per howur
plus laboratory
charges

£63 00 per
hour plus
laboratory

£66_ 00 per
hour plus
laboratory

Sample taken during sheck monitaring

£33 .00 per howur
plus laboratory
charges

£63 00 per
hour plus
laboratory

£66_ 00 per
hour plus
laboratory

Sample taken during audit monitoring

£53.00 per hour
plus laboratory
charges

£63. 00 per
hour plus
laboratory

£66.00 per

hour plus

laboratory

00T Wal| epusaby



LICEMNSING ACT 2003 - FEES SET BY CENTRAL GOVERMMENMNT - SAME FOR ALL DISTRICT COUMNCILS

Temporary Event Hotices
Festo seme a Temporary Event Blotice [TER]
Copu of & TEM [if lo=t ar stolen]

Personal licences
Application For the grant of a personal licence
Fee for areplacement persanal licence [if lost or stalen]
F e ta motifu 2 change of name or address on a personal licence

Applications for new premises licences or club premises certificates
Applications Far the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate
Eand & (NORMN O - 4300)
Eand B (MNORN 4301 - 33000)
Eand C (NORMN 33001 - S7000)
Band O (MNORY S7001 - 125000)
E=nd E (RNORY 125001 +)

premises is used erclusively aor primarily far the supply of alcohal For consumption an the
premises]

Eand & (NORM O - 4300)

Eand B (MNORY 4301 - 33000]

Eand C (NORMN 33001 - S7000)

Eand O [(MORN S7T001 - 125000)

Band E (NORY 125001 +)

additional fees for grant of 2 premises licences (for large venues with capacities owsr SO00)
S000 - 3333
10000 - 143339
15000 - 13333
20000 - 23333
30000 - 33333
40000 - 43333
50000 - 53333
0000 - 53333
Toooo - 73333
S0000 - 53333

oG abed

Applications to vary premises licences and club premises certificates
Applications bo vary a premises licence or club premises certificate
Band A [MORY 0 - 4300)
E=arnd B (MNORY 4301 - 33000)
Earnd C (NORYW 33007 - S7000]
Eard O (MNORY S7007 - 125000]
Earnd E(MDORMW 125001 +)

Applications to vary a premises licence [where the premises is used enclusively or primarilu far
the supply of alcohol faor consumption on the premizses]

Eard & (MNORW 0 - 4300)

Earnd B (MORY 4307 - 33000]

Earnd C (NORYW 33007 - S7000]

Eard O (MNORW ST007 - 125000]

Eand E[MDORY 125001 +)

Application For a minor variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate

£Z21.00
€£10.50

€3 700
£10_50
E£10.50

€100.00
€£130.00
€£315.00
£450_ 00
£635_ 00

€£100.00
€£130.00
€£315.00
£300_ 00
£1. 30500

£1.000.00
£2.000.00
£4_000_00
€8, 000_00
€16 00000
€24 00000
€32 000.00
£40.000.00
£48. 00000
£56.000.00

£100.00
£190.00
£315.00
£450.00
E£635.00

£100.00
£130.00
£315.00
E£300. 00
£1. 30500

€£53.00

00T Wal| epusaby



/G obed

Annual maintenance fees
Annual premizes licence or club premises certificate fee
Bard & (MNORW O - 4300)
Band B (NORW 4301 - 33000)
Band CIMNORY 33001 - 57000)
Band O (NORMW 37007 - 125000]
Band E (MNORW 125007 +]

Annual premises licence [whers the premises iz used exclusively or primarily Far the supplu of
alcohal for consumption on the premizes]

Band & (MORY 0 - 4300)

Eand B [(MORY 4501 - 33000)

Eand C [MORY 533007 - 37000)

Band O (MORY 37001 - 125000]

Eand E [(MORY 125007 +)

Additiornal annual fees premizes licences [(For large venues with capacities awver S000)
5000 -3333
10000 - 143339
15000 - 13333
20000 - 23333
30000 - 33333
40000 - 43333
E0000 - 53333
EQ0O00 - 53333
TOOoo0 - 73333
S0000 - 83333

Other applications and notifications
Application to transfer a premizes licence
Application to wary a premizes licence to nominate a premises supervisor
Fee to change name or address of the holder of a premizses licence
Fee ta change the name or address of a designated premizes superviszor on a premises
Fee far areplacement premizes licence or club premises certificate [if lost or stalen)
Fee to notifu licensing authority of 2 propern interest in a premises
Matication of change or club name or alteration to club rules
Matification of change of registered address of club
Interim authority notice Following de ath, incapacity or insolvency of licence holder
Application for grant of a provizional statement

Pavement Licenses
Eweru B months

£70.00
£180.00
£295.00
£320.00
£350.00

£70.00
£180.00
£235.00
£640_00
£1.050.00

£500.00
£1.000.00
£2.000.00
£4.,.000.00
£8.000.00
£12.000.00
€£16,.000_00
£20.000.00
£24,.000.00
£28.000.00

£23.00
£23 .00
£10.50
£10.50
£10.50
£21.00
£10.50
£10.50
£23.00
£315.00

£100.00

00T Wal| epusaby



gG abed

LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES

2023124 2024125
TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE
Hackney Carriage YWehicle Licence £260_40 £2T78 60
Frivate Hire Wehicle Licence £241.50 £258_40
Temporary Hacknew Carriage Yehicle Licence £135_30 £203.00
Temporary Private Hire WYehicle Licence £181. 10 £133_80
Private Hire Operator Licencs (5 uear) £1.180_20 £1.262_80
Hackrew Carriage ! Private Hire Oriver Licence (3 uesar) £244_ 70 £2651_.80
K rnowledge Test £24_20 £25 90
Replacement vehicle licence plate £24_Z0 £25_ 390
Feplacement driver’s licence £22.10 £23.60
Transfer of ownership of a licensed vehicle £39_ 30 £42_ 70
Criminal Record [DES] Check £58_80 £62_90
ANIMAL ACTIVITY LICEMNCES
Hiring out horses, breeding of dogs. providing or arranging
the provision of boarding for cats or dogs and selling
Application fee £323.00 £355.00
Licence fee [1u=sarl £184_00 £139.00
Licence fee [ years] £364_00 +393_00
Licence fee 5 usars] £546.00 £590.00
Application to vary a licence £240_.00 £259.00
‘Yeterinary fees [if applicable) Recovered at cost
Local autharity inspection [on request of lisence halder] £164_00 £1F 7. 00
Keeping or training animals For exhibition [ondy)
Application fee £213_.00 £237.00
Licence fee [3 uears] £300_00 £324_00
Application ta vary a licencs £1585_00 £170_00
Wererinary fees [if applicable) Recovered at cost
Local autharity inspection [on request of licence holder] £163_00 £17F7_ 00
ACUPUNCTURE, COSMETIC PIERCING, SEMI-PERMAMNEMNT
SKIN COLOURING, TATTOOING, ELECTROLYSIS
Fee taregister a premises £142_80 £152_80
Fee o register a practitionsr £93_50 £100_ 00
GAMBLING ACT 2005 (inc. SMALL LOTTERIES)
Small society lotteries
Fee taregister a small societu lattery £40_ 00 £40_ 00
Small sacietu lattery annual maintenances fes £20_00 £20_00
Application For the grant of a premises licence
Eetting [=xcluding rracks] £1.8543.10 £1.978.50
Betting Tracks £1.542_50 £1.650_50
Birngao £2_216_60 £Z.371.80
Adult Gaming Centres £1.266_30 £1.354_30
F amilu Entertainment Centres £1.266_30 £1.354_90

2025126

£283.T0
£268.7T0
£217.40
£201.60
£1.313.30
£2TZ.30
£26_90
£26.390
£24_50
£d44_40
£65.40

£365. 70
£205.00
£404_80
£607. 70
£Z266_80

£182.30

£2d44_10
£3I3IF.TO
E£175.10

£182_30

£158_90
£104.00

£40_00
£20.00

£2.057.60
£1.716_50
£Z2 46670
£1.4039.10
£1.409_10

00T Wal| epusaby



6G abed

Premises licence annual Fees
Betting [excluding tracks)

Betting Tracks=s

Birngo

Adult Gaming Centres

F amilu Entertainment Centres

Application to vary a premises licence
Betting [excluding tracks)

Betting Tracks=s

Birngo

Adult Gaming Centres

F amilu Entertainment Centres

Application to transfer a premises licence
Betting [excluding tracks)

Betting Tracks=s

Birngo

Adult Gaming Centres

F amilu Entertainment Centres

Application for a provisional statement
Betting [excluding tracks)

Betting Tracks=s

Birngo

Adult Gaming Centres

F amilu Entertainment Centres

Application Ffor the grant of a premises licence [provisional

statement holders]
Betting [excluding tracks)
Betting Tracks

Birngo

Adult Gaming Centres

Family Entertainment Centres

Application For reinstatement of a premizes licence
Eetting [=xcluding rracks)

Betting Tracks

Eirngo

Adult Gaming Centres

F amilu Entertainment Centres

Premises licence Fees [Imiscellaneous]
Copw of & premises licence Lall tupes]
Matification of 2 changes inrespect of a premises licence [all tupes]

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits
Application for grant of a permit

Application Far variation of a permit

Application Far the transfer of & permit

Arnrual permit fee

Changes of name shown on & permit

Fegqusest for 2 copu of 2 permit

£381.20
£634_ 20
£634_F0
£634.20
£476.T0

£351.30
£731.70
£1.112.00
£351.30
£735.00

£758._10
£601.70
£753.Z0
£758.10
£601.70

£1.8493_10
£1.542_50
£2Z_ Z216.60
£1.266.30
£1.266.30

Mo fee set
Mo fee set
Mo fee set
Mo fee set
Mo fee set

£F33.20
£530.10
E£ET39. 20
€73 20
£530.10

£25.00
£50.00

£150.00

£100.00
£25.00
£50.00
£25.00
£15.00

€£407_30
£6T73. 60
£673. 60
£673.60
£5710.10

€£1.017.90
£847T_10

£1.183_80

£1.000.00
£F86.50

£811.20
£643 850
£81Z2_30
£811.20
£643. 50

£1.978.50
£1.650.50
£2.371.80
£1.354.90
£1.354.90

£833.60
£833.60
£837.10
£837_10
£636.650

£F30.30
£631.40
£730.390
€£730.90
£631.40

£25. 00
£50.00

£150.00
£100.00
£25_ 00
£50.00
£25. 00
£15.00

£424_20
£7F05.T0
£7F05.70
£7F05.70
£530.50

£1.058_60
€581 00

£1. 23740

£1.000.00
E£818. 00

£843_60
£663_60
£844_80
£843_60
£663.60

€2 05760
£1.T16.50
£Z 46670
£1.4039.10
£1.4039.10

£866_30
£866.30
£87F0.60
£870_60
£724_50

£822_50
£656.7T0
£822.50
£822_50
£656_T0

£25.00
£50.00

€150 00
£100_ 00
£25.00
£50.00
£25.00
£15.00

00T Wal| epusaby



09 abed

Licensed Premises Gaming Machines [Automatic
Fee to serve notification

Club Gaming Permits

Application For grant of 2 permit

Application for grant of a2 permit [Club premises certificate halders)
Application for wariation of 2 permit

Application For rensw al of 2 permit

application far renew al of 2 permit [club premizes cenificate holdsrs)
arnrual permit Fese

Fequest for a copy of a permit

Club Machine Permits

Application Far grant of s permit

Application For grant of a permit [Club premises certificate holder=]
Application for wariation of 2 permit

Application For rensw al of 2 permit

application far renew al of 2 permit [club premizes cenificate holdsrs)
arnrual permit Fese

Request for a copy of a permit

Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permit
application Far grant of = permit

Application Far rernew al of 2 permit

Change of name shown on a permit

Feguest for a copy of a permit

Prize Gaming Permits
application Far grant of = permit
Application Far rernew al of 2 permit
Change of name shown on a permit
Feqguest for a copw of a permit

Temporary Use Motices
Festo serve a Temporary Llze Matice
Fequest for a copw of a Tempaorary L=se Matice

STREET TRADING

Arnrnual street trading consent - Food = initial

Annual street trading consent — food — renew al
Arnual strest trading consent — non—food — initial
Arnrnual strest irading consent - non—food - rensw al

SCRAP METAL DEALERS LICENCES
Application for a new site licence

F o= per additional site

application Far renew al of a site licence

Fee per additional site

Application for a new collectors licence
Application for rernsw al of 2 collectars licence
Wariation of a licence

Request for a copy of alicence [if lost ar stolen]

£50.00

£200.00
€£100.00
£100. 00
€200 00
£100.00

£50.00

£15.00

£200.00
£100.00
£100. 00
€200 00
£100.00
£50.00
£15.00

£300. 00
£300.00
€25 00
£13. 00

£300. 00

£300.00
£25_00
£13. 00

€£287_ 00
€25 00

£1.5713. 40
£1.333F 40
£1.267_ 40
£1.140.30

£50.00

£200.00
€£100.00
£100. 00
€200 00
£100.00

£50.00

£15.00

£200.00
£100.00
£100. 00
€200 00
£100.00
£50.00
£15.00

£300. 00
£300.00
€25 00
£13. 00

£300. 00

£300.00
£25_00
£13. 00

£307_10
€25 00

£1.625_80
£1. 430 30
£1.356_10
E£1L.220.10

£311.00
£160.00
€£257_00
€£170.00
£155. 00
£10Z2_00
£ o0
£27_ 00

£50.00

£200_.00
£100. 00
£100. 00
£200_00
£100.00
£50_.00
£15.00

£200_00
£100.00
£100. 00
£200_00
£100.00
£50_.00
£15.00

£300.00
£300_00
€25 00
£15.00

£300.00

£300_00
£25_ 00
£15.00

£313. 40
€25 00

£1.690_80
£1.550_50
£1.410_30
£1. 26830

£153. 70
£105_10
£F2_10
£2T_ 50

00T Wal| epusaby



T9 abed

F00 LICEMCES
Application for grant or renew al of a licence
Secretary of state inspector and veterinary fees

DAMNGEROUS WILD ANIMALS [(DWA)
Application for grant or renew al of a licence
Yererinary inspection fees

SEX ESTABLISHMEMNTS

Application for grant or renew al of a licence
Application for transfer of licence
Application for variation of licence

PAVEMEMNT LICEMCES
Application for a pavement licence [6 months licence)
Application for a new pavement licence - 2 uears

Application for arenew al pavement licence - 2 uears

STREET AMENITY PERMISSIOMNS
Application for grant of a new permission

Application for renew al of a2 permission

HYPMOTISM

Application for autharization

£250._00

Recovered at cost

£235.00

Recovered at cost

£1.020.00
£500._00
£1.020.00

£100.00

£200_00
£55.00

£50.00

£267T.50

£251.50

£1.091.40
£535.00
£1.091.40

£100.00

£214_00
£585_ 90

£53.50

£27T8. 20

£261.60

£1.135.10
£556_ 40
£1.135.10

£0_00
£500.00
£350_00

Ceased -

Ceased -

£55.60

00T Wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



€9 abed

Appendix D — Reserves Position

Transkers  Transkers Transfers
In Dut In
Balance Balance
as at 31 as at 31
March March
2022 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

2022423 2022423

202324

General Fund Balances [9,012] 1747
General Fund:

Building Contral Otker 7 1] 1]
Building Cortral Partnerships a2 i] i]
Cornrmunity Services 21 2] i
E conomic Regeneration 1348 1] 1]
Election Services 51 34 a
Erwironrental Services 27 a a
Financial Services 4,705 a 0
HR Backlog Funding

ICT Backlog Funding

Hauszing Schermes o654 1] 1]
ICTiSysterms 197 i] i]
Leizure/Commmunity Safety 151 ] [36)
Local Meighbourkood Partnership: & 1] 1]
Citer i ] ]
Planring & Regeneration 133 330 i]
Regul atary Services [Partner Shar 73 12 i
Replacement Reserve [Inc. Recwdli 1] 1]

Shared Services [Severance Costd 311 1] 1]
Cavid-19 (General Covid Grant] 7EE i i
Covid-13 [Callection Fund) 4,789 i] [3,385)
|tilities

“Ward Budgets

Cauncil Tax Hardship Fund 1] 79 1]
Property Services Feview

EPR Funding &llocationb

Artrix Holding Trust

Transfers

Dut

202424

£000

[1.330)

Balance
asat31 Prior
March year

Transfers Transfers Transfers Transfers Transkers Transfers Transfers Transfers
Prior Yr Bud In Out Balance In Ot Balance In Out Balance In DOut Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance
agz at 31 as at 31 as at 31 as at 31

Transfers Transfers March  Transfers Transfers March  Transfers Transfers March  Transfers Transfers March
2024 Changes In Out 2024 In Ot 2024 In Out 2024 In Out 2024

£000 2024125 2024125 3-Mar-25 2025026 2025426 31-Mar-26 2026027 2026027 3-Mar-27 2027128 2027128 31-Mar-28

£000

[1.050)

00T Wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



G9 abed

Appendix E — Capital Programme

Council Council Council Council Council Council 3rd Party 3rd Partyird Partidrd Party3rd Party 3rd Party|
Cap Description Department Funding detail| Caried | 2024125 | 2024125 | Spend | 202326 202627 2027128 202829 | 2029430 24125 2026 26027 2728 28029 29430 24125 2526 26027 2W28 28129 2930
Proj Fwdto | Budget | Total 245 Total Total  Total Total | Total £ £ £ £ i £ £ i £ £ £ £
2415 £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Large Schemes
Levelling Up Fund Fund
- Government Funded Flanning, Regeneration | Grant Funding 0 0 oo 0
B Leisure Services
0 0 [ 0
Plarket Hall [LUF) Plarning, Regeneration |Levelling Up 12337104 609,004 | 15921799 [ 9,228,000 0" 0
200072 & Leisure Fund 3,000,000 £109.704 £,228,000
Ef - Fire Station Planring, Regereration [Levelling Up 1209674 1209674 | 77300 0 I n " 0
200073 % Leisure Fund 1209674
- Council Funded Borrowing 0 I n " 0
0 0 I 0
UK Shared Prosperity Fund 0 I oo 0
- Capital Element Planning, Regeneration | Grant Funding 0 I oo 0
B Leizure Services 0 0
- Revenue Element Planning, Grant Funding 0 0 oo 0
Regeneration & 1] 0
-Rermainder (tobe allocated)  Planning, Regeneration | GrantFunding | 627001 | 1784215 | 24126 913,000 I n "0 0
& Leisure Services 1784205 918,000
0 0 I 0
0 0 I 0
Schemes Agreed to Continue i 0 orn i
200008 Burcot Lane Finanzial & Custorner | Public warks laan 0 1] 1] 915,514 0 1] [ 0
Services board and grant
hornes england i ]
200007 Comnmunity & Housing | Capital I 0 0 I oo 0
ceTv GF Services ReceiptatBorrowi 0 1]
200008 Funding for DFGs Cornrmunity & Housing | Grant income 13432 | TR0FE | M3 748 | BET0G3 | 1288947 00000 900000 800,000 900,000 00,000
GF Services WCC 113036 1285847 500000 800,000 800,000
200009) Horne Repairs Assistance Cornmunity & Housing — |Long Term Ta602 | B0,000 165,602 50,000 50000 50000 T G0OO0 50000
GF Services Debtors 50,000 50000 50000 50000 50000 50,000
2000100 Energy Efficiency Installation  Community & Housing | Capital 02180 1 10,000 212190 0 i} n "0 0
GF Services ReceiptatBorrowi 110,000 i}
200016] hew Finance Enterprize Financial & Custorner | Capital Receipts 20,000 20,000 20,000 20000 20000 T 20000 20000
systern Services 20,000 20000 20000 20000 20,000 20000
200013 Fleet Replacemnet new line 0 280,000 | 280,000 ( 13,860 | 1265000 20,000 [ 0
2780000 1265000 820,000 0 0
200022 Replacernent Parking Erwiratrnental Services | Capital 12745 | 128000 | 137745 85003 00000 100000 100000 100000 100,000
rnachines and Upkesp of Sites ReceiptsBarrawi 125000 100000 100000 100,000 100,000 100,000
200030 wheelie Bin Purchase Erwironmental Services | Capital 0 60,000 E0.000 a2 120000 120000 120000 120000 120,000
ReceiptsBarrawi
nq E0000 120000 120000 120,000 120,000 120,000

00T Wa)| epuaby



99 abed

Council

Council Council Council Council Council

3Ird Party 3rd Partyird Partdrd Partydrd Party 3rd Party

Cap Description Department Funding detail | Caried | 2024425 | 202425 | Spend | 202526 202627 2027128 2028129 | 202930 425 26 2627 2028 229 2930 425 2N26 26027 2728 28029 2930
Proj Fwdto | Budget | Total 2415 Total ~ Total  Total  Total | Total i i i |3 |3 i |3 |3 i i |3 i
2445 £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Mew  [Buildings Legal and Property Barrowing 00000 | 100000 | 200,000 780 00000 100000 100000 7 100,000 100,000
00000 100000 100000 100000 100,000 100,000
200045] Greener Homes Cammurity & Houging [ Grants & I i i £.125 i i 0 "0 i
[5F Services Contributions
i i
200026] Fubery Redevelopment warks i Al i 0 "0 i
200082\ Mew Digital Service Commurity & Hauzing - |Barrowing J3REG i J1REG i i 0 "0 i
[5F Services 1 1
2000331 Bug Shelters Enwirormental Services |Borrowing 000 | 8000 | 3e000 180 |00 000 18000 T 000 18000
WBO00 18000 8000 18000 98000 18000
200069) Ciaco Metwark Update Busingss transformation | Barrowing I i i MA77 50000 50000 T 0000 50000
& Organizational
Developrent i 4877 50000 BOJO0 50000 50,000
Server Feplacement Est{Exact Business transformation |Barrowing 7951 | TP7E00 | 169,549 |50 BOOO0  BOOOD " ROOOD 60000
200070{ known 02 2022) & Orgarisational 77500 18500 0000 BOOOD  EOOO0 60,000
Laptap Refresh Buziness transfarmation |Barrowing 13459 | BO000 | WB34E [ M 5000 30000 30000 730000 30000
200071 & Organisational 0000 5000 30000 30000 30000 30000
Sanderz Park Planning, Fegeneration | 5108 i i i 4560 i i 0 i
0075 & Leizurs Services 0 0
Fleet Replacerment Costs 9400 i 9400 Ta,000 i T "0 i -
‘Wheely Bin Increases a5.000 i 85,000 i i 0 "0 i
"wfild Flower Machingry 2000 i 2000 i i [ i
Iritial Play Audit Requirements G000 | 4000 | 451000 i i 0 "0 i
2000105 364,000
|Updated Play dudit 6242 HA84 226459 TOETAN 165749
Reuiraments [Dec 241 6242 BOR4 26459 E7RM TERT4S
Mivernent of ICT Cyber 0000 50000 i i i 070 i
Capital Works Forward 0000
Mew ongaing Cyber securty 2000 | 25000 [ 25000 " 26000 T 25000 25000 25000
budge! B0 A0 A0 K00 28000 25,000
Play Area, POS and Spat Planning, Pegeneration (5108 19013AFUL | 22626 | 37956 [ GORGZ [ 30000 i i i i i

improvernents &t Lickey End
Recreation Ground in
accordance with the 5106
Agreemernt

& Leisure Services

00T Wa)| epuaby



19 abed

Council Council Council Council Council Council

3rd Party 3rd Partylrd Partdrd Party3rd Party 3rd Party

Cap Deseription Department  |Funding detail | Caried | 2024125 | 2024125 | Spend | 202526 2026027 2027028 2008029 (202%30( 242 2826 2627 208 2499 2930 M W% MR N A 2930
Proj Fwdto | Budget | Total | 245 | Total  Total Total Total | Total H H H H H £ £ £ H H £ H
il £ £ H £ H H H
Food Waste Collection - fund 2T 0 0 0 I
for Vechgicles and cortainers
028
Replacement Whesled Bing om0 0 0 0
2200000
Parkside - Requirement for a 5740 0 0 0 0
fireml
5750
Laptops for new Starters R0 AN B0 A0 0
B0 28000 B0 2000
Sdany Capilisation 000 FR0000 FRO000 70000 TAO.000 0000 7A0000 70000 FRO000 TR0.00
Ay - Landord Obligations 000 | A0 | v | 0000 2000 20000 T80 2000 000 D00 DM 2000 20000 20000
Total AN BRI7 | BB SN | 199347 T 32204 2469458 2INEN(2T]  3AAN0 SO ZAZ2B41 TRRS45Y 150531 1578 WZ7RT I A0 A00000 BO0000  0ojno

00T Wal| epusaby



This page is intentionally left blank



69 abed

Appendix F — Capital Strategy

Introduction

1.1  This capital strategy report gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management
activity contribute to the provision of local public services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the
implications for future financial sustainability. It has been written in an accessible style to enhance members’ understanding of
these sometimes technical areas.

1.2  Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have financial consequences for the Authority for many
years into the future. They are therefore subject to both a national regulatory framework and to local policy framework,
summarised in this report.

Capital Expenditure and Financing

1.3 Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as property or vehicles, that will be used for more
than one year. In local government this includes spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other
bodies enabling them to buy assets.

1.4  In 2025/26, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £2.7m as summarised below:

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
General Fund services 3.4 4.2 2.7 2.3 1.5
Regeneration 0.5 1.9 0.0 0.0 0.0
TOTAL 3.9 6.1 2.7 2.3 1.5

00T Wa)| epuaby



1.5

1.6

0/ abed

1.7

The Council is still to finalise work required for the adoption of IFRS16 linking to the accounting for leases which must be
implemented by the 2025/26 financial year.

The main General Fund capital projects are the three Levelling Up Projects which amount to £16m of expenditure and include
Public Realm Improvements £1.0m, The New Market Hall Centre amounts to £10.3m, and clearance of the Windsor Street
site ready for redevelopment. The Council received approval from the Ministry of Housing, Local Government and
Communities on the 30t January 2025 that delivery of these projects could be extended until the 31st March 2026. Both the
Windsor Street and Public Realm projects were completed by the end of the 2024/5 financial year. The Burcot housing
development was completed in early 2024 (£10.0m). Following a change in the Prudential Code, the Authority no longer incurs
capital expenditure on investments.

Governance: Service managers bid annually in January to include projects in the Authority’s capital programme. Bids are
collated by corporate finance who calculate the financing cost (which can be nil if the project is fully externally financed). The
Audit Standards and Governance Committee and then the Cabinet appraises all bids based on a comparison of strategic
priorities against financing costs and makes recommendations to Council. The final capital programme is then presented to
Cabinet in February and to Council in February each year.

» For full details of the Authority’s capital programme, including the project appraisals undertaken, see Tranche 2 of the

2025/26 Medium Term Financial Plan.

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government grants and other contributions), the
Authority’s own resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance Initiative).
The planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows:

Table 2: Capital financing in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
External sources 0.9 2.7 0.8 0.8 0.8
Own Resources 3.0 34 1.9 15 0.7

00T Wa)| epuaby



1.8

T/ obed

1.9

Debt 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
TOTAL 3.9 6.1 2.7 2.3 1.5

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, and this is therefore replaced over time by
other financing, usually from revenue which is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds from
selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance. Planned [MRP / repayments] and use
of capital receipts are as follows:

Table 3: Replacement of prior years’ debt finance in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast budget * budget budget
Minimum revenue
provision 0.9 1.2 13 1.3 1.4
Capital Receipts 0.9 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

» The Authority’s full minimum revenue provision statement is available within the body of this report.

The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the capital financing requirement (CFR). This
increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace debt. The
CFR is expected to increase by £2.7m during 2025/26. Based on the above figures for expenditure and financing, the
Authority’s estimated CFR is as follows:

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions

31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026 | 31.3.2027 | 31.3.2028
actual forecast budget budget budget
General Fund &
Regeneration 38.6 42.7 454 47.7 49.2
TOTAL CFR 38.6 42.7 454 47.7 49.2

00T Wa)| epuaby



Z/) abed

1.10

1.11

Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, the Authority has an asset management
strategy in place. Within this strategy, individual properties and associated land will be further evaluated to determine:

e The operational necessity and benefit.

e Projected costs of ensuring all elements of the buildings continue to meet legislative requirements and performance
standards.

e Planned and cyclical maintenance costs for elements nearing the end of their ‘life’ expectancy, ensuring service provision
is maintained without unnecessary interruption. Costs associated with meeting future EPC rating minimum requirements.

e Rent levels (and net costs for each building) and revised leases.

e Alternative or rationalised portfolio or joint enterprises for service delivery.

By evaluation of all factors cited above, informed decisions can be made to determine which assets are:

e No longer cost effective to run, where outlay exceeds earning potential
e No longer viable for effective service delivery
e Surplus to requirements

Asset considerations will be presented to Cabinet on a half yearly basis for approval for disposal, unless there is an urgent
requirement for a decision.

Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the proceeds, known as capital receipts,
can be spent on new assets or to repay debt: The Authority is currently also permitted to spend capital receipts “flexibly” on
service transformation projects until 2025/26 although nothing is presently planned. Repayments of capital grants, loans and
investments also generate capital receipts. The Authority plans to receive £0m of capital receipts in the coming financial year
as follows:

Table 5: Capital receipts receivable in £ millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast budget * budget budget
Asset sales 0.9 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

00T Wa)| epuaby



¢ ) abed

Loans etc repaid 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Treasury Management

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash available to meet the Authority’s spending
needs, while managing the risks involved. Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current account. The Authority is typically cash rich in
the short-term as revenue income is received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure is incurred
before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.

Due to decisions taken in the past, the Authority currently has no external long term (over 1 year) borrowing and £14.5m
treasury investments at an average rate of 4.9%.

Borrowing strategy: The Authority’s main objectives when borrowing is to achieve a low but certain cost of finance while
retaining flexibility should plans change in future. These objectives are often conflicting, and the Authority therefore seeks to
strike a balance between cheaper short-term loans and long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher.

The Authority does not borrow to invest for the primary purpose of financial return and therefore retains full access to the
Public Works Loans Board.

Projected levels of the Authority’s total outstanding debt (which comprises borrowing, PFI liabilities, leases and transferred
debt) are shown below, compared with the capital financing requirement (see above).

Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement in £ millions

31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026 | 31.3.2027 | 31.3.2028
actual forecast budget budget budget
General Fund (incl.
PFI & leases) 3.9 6.1 2.7 2.3 1.5

00T Wa)| epuaby



1.17

1.18
T
jab)
Q
@D
\l
N

1.19

1.20

Capital Financing

Requirement 42.7

45.4 47.7 49.2

‘ 38.6

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, except in the short-term. As can be
seen from table 6, the Authority expects to comply with this in the medium term.

Liability benchmark: To compare the Authority’s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has
been calculated showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes that cash and investment balances are kept to a
minimum level of £2m at each year-end. This benchmark is currently £5.69m and is not forecast to rise over the next three
years.

Table 7: Borrowing and the Liability Benchmark in £ millions

31.3.2024 | 31.3.2025 | 31.3.2026 | 31.3.2027 | 31.3.2028
actual forecast budget budget budget
Forecast Outstanding
borrowing - GE 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Liability benchmark 5.69 5.69 5.69 5.69 5.69

The table shows that the Authority expects to remain borrowed below its liability benchmark. This is because cash outflows to
date have been below the assumptions made when the loans were borrowed.

Affordable borrowing limit: The Authority is legally obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit (also termed the authorised
limit for external debt) each year. In line with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning level
should debt approach the limit.

Table 8: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt in £m

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
limit limit limit limit
£m £m £m £m

00T Wa)| epuaby



G, abed

1.21

1.22

Authorised limit — borrowing 60 60 60 60
@L;tshé)srised limit — PFI and 1 1 1 1
Aol a| @]  a|  ow
ng;ﬁgﬁgal boundary — 55 55 55 55
;)npdeﬁgggzl boundary — PFI 1 1 1 1
Opratone pourcary ot | ss|  s| s

Treasury investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from receiving cash before it is paid out again. Investments made
for service reasons or for pure financial gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury management.

The Authority’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over yield, that is to focus on minimising risk
rather than maximising returns. Cash that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the
government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the risk of loss. Money that will be held for
longer terms is invested more widely, including in bonds, shares and property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of
receiving returns below inflation. Both near-term and longer-term investments may be held in pooled funds, where an external
fund manager makes decisions on which particular investments to buy and the Authority may request its money back at short

notice.

Table 9: Treasury management investments in £millions

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

actual forecast budget * budget budget
Near-term investments 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
Long-term investments 0 0 0 0 0

00T Wa)| epuaby



9/ abed

1.23

1.24

TOTAL 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 | 4.5 |

» Further details on treasury investments are in the Treasury Management Strategy part of this appendix.

Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime objectives of the Authority’s treasury management
activities. The treasury management strategy therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the risk of unexpected
losses and details the extent to which financial derivatives may be used to manage treasury risks.

o The treasury management prudential indicators are in the treasury management strategy which are part of these
appendices.

Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are made daily and are therefore delegated to
the Director of Finance and staff, who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by Council. Quarterly
reports on treasury management activity are presented to Cabinet. The Audit, Standards and Governance Committee is
responsible for scrutinising treasury management decisions.

Investments for Service Purposes

1.25

1.26

1.27

The Authority makes investments to assist local public services, including making loans to local service providers, local small
businesses to promote economic growth, and the Authority’s subsidiaries that provide services to stakeholders. Total
investments for service purposes are currently valued at £0m.

Risk management: In light of the public service objective, the Authority is willing to take more risk than with treasury
investments, however it still plans for such investments to break even after all costs. A limit of £2.5m is placed on total
investments for service purposes to ensure that plausible losses could be absorbed in budgets or reserves without
unmanageable detriment to local services.

Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant service manager in consultation with the Director of
Finance and must meet the criteria and limits laid down in the investment strategy. Most loans and shares are capital

00T Wa)| epuaby



/] obed

expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the capital programme. The relevant service director and
the Director of Finance are responsible for ensuring that adequate due diligence is carried out before investment is made.

Further details on service investments are in the Treasury Management Strategy.

Liabilities

1.28 The Authority is committed to making future payments to cover its pension fund deficit (which is in surplus as per the 2022
Triennial revaluation and the backlog will be cleared in 2037). It has also set aside £1.0m for Business Rates appeals.

1.29 Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by Heads of Service in consultation with the Director
of Finance. The risk of liabilities crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by the corporate finance team and reported
biannually to Cabinet. New liabilities exceeding £0.5m are reported to full council for approval/notification as appropriate.

Revenue Budget Implications

1.30 Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable on loans and MRP are charged to
revenue. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the net revenue stream i.e. the amount
funded from Council Tax, business rates and general government grants.

Table 10: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast budget * budget budget
Financing costs (Em) 0.9 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4

00T Wa)| epuaby



g/ abed

Proportion of net

)
revenue stream 11.50%

11.50% 11.50% 11.60%

‘ 11.40%

1.31 Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the revenue budget implications of
expenditure incurred in the next few years will extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Director of Finance is satisfied
that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable because of the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) forecasts which show that the Council is financially sustainable over that period.

Knowledge and Skills

1.32 The Authority employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions with responsibility for making capital
expenditure, borrowing and investment decisions. For example, the Director of Finance and Head of Service are qualified
accountants with significant experience. The Authority pays for junior staff to study towards relevant professional qualifications
including CIPFA and AAT.

1.33 Where Authority staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of external advisers and consultants that
are specialists in their field. The Authority currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management advisers and Bruton
Knowles as property consultants. This approach is more cost effective than employing such staff directly and ensures that the
Authority has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

» Further details on staff training can be found in the HR Employee Development section of the website.

00T Wa)| epuaby



6/ abed

Appendix G — Treasury Management Strategy

Introduction

2.1

2.2

2.3

Treasury management is the management of the Authority’s cash flows, borrowing and investments, and the associated risks.
The Authority has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested
funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk
are therefore central to the Authority’s prudent financial management.

Treasury risk management at the Authority is conducted within the framework of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires
the Authority to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. This report fulfils the
Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a different report, the Investment Strategy.

External Context

Economic background:

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

The impact on the UK from the government’s Autumn Budget, slower expected interest rate cuts, a short-term boost to but
modestly weaker economic growth over the medium term, together with the impact from President-elect Trump’s second term
in office and uncertainties around US domestic and foreign policy, will be major influences on the Authority’s treasury
management strategy for 2025/26.

The Bank of England’s (BoE) Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) held Bank Rate at 4.75% at its December 2024 meeting,
having reduced it to that level in November and following a previous 25bp cut from the 5.25% peak at the August MPC
meeting. At the December meeting, six Committee members voted to maintain Bank Rate at 4.75% while three members
preferred to reduce it to 4.50%.

The November quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) expected Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth to pick up to
around 1.75% (four-quarter GDP) in the early period of the BoE’s forecast horizon before falling back. The impact from the
Budget pushes GDP higher in 2025 than was expected in the previous MPR, before becoming weaker. Current GDP growth
was shown to be zero (0.0%) between July and September 2024 and 0.4% between April and June 2024, a further
downward revision from the 0.5% rate previously reported by the Office for National Statistics (ONS).

ONS figures reported the annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation rate at 2.6% in November 2024, up from 2.3% in the
previous month and in line with expectations. Core CPI also rose, but by more than expected, to 3.6% against a forecast of
3.5% and 3.3% in the previous month. The outlook for CPI inflation in the November MPR showed it rising above the MPC’s
2% target from 2024 into 2025 and reaching around 2.75% by the middle of calendar 2025. This represents a modest near-

00T Wa)| epuaby



08 abed

2.8

2.9

2.10

term increase due to the ongoing impacts from higher interest rates, the Autumn Budget, and a projected margin of
economic slack. Over the medium-term, once these pressures ease, inflation is expected to stabilise around the 2% target.
The labour market appears to be easing slowly, but the data still require treating with some caution. The latest figures
reported the unemployment rate rose to 4.3% in the three months to October 2024 and economic inactivity fell to 21.7%. Pay
growth for the same period was reported at 5.2% for both regular earnings (excluding bonuses) and for total earnings.
Looking ahead, the BoE MPR showed the unemployment rate is expected to increase modestly, rising to around 4.5%, the
assumed medium-term equilibrium unemployment rate, by the end of the forecast horizon.

The US Federal Reserve has continued cutting interest rates, bringing down the Fed Funds Rate by 0.25% at its December
2024 monetary policy meeting to a range of 4.25%-4.50%, marking the third consecutive reduction. Further interest rate cuts
are expected, but uncertainties around the potential inflationary impact of incoming President Trump’s policies may muddy
the waters in terms of the pace and magnitude of further rate reductions. Moreover, the US economy continues to expand at
a decent pace, rising at an (upwardly revised) annual rate of 3.1% in the third quarter of 2024, and inflation remains elevated
suggesting that monetary policy may need to remain more restrictive in the coming months than had previously been
anticipated.

Euro zone inflation rose above the European Central Bank (ECB) 2% target in November 2024, hitting 2.2% as was widely
expected and a further increase from 2% in the previous month. Despite the rise, the ECB continued its rate cutting cycle
and reduced its three key policy rates by 0.25% in December. Inflation is expected to rise further in the short term, but then
fall back towards the 2% target during 2025, with the ECB remaining committed to maintaining rates at levels consistent with
bringing inflation to target, but without suggesting a specific path.

Credit outlook:

2.11

2.12

2.13

Credit Default Swap (CDS) prices have typically followed a general trend downwards during 2024, reflecting a relatively more
stable financial period compared to the previous year. Improved credit conditions in 2024 have also led to greater convergence
in CDS prices between ringfenced (retail) and non-ringfenced (investment) banking entities again.

Higher interest rates can lead to a deterioration in banks’ asset quality through increased loan defaults and volatility in the
value of capital investments. Fortunately, the rapid interest rate hikes during this monetary tightening cycle, while putting some
strain on households and corporate borrowers, has not caused a rise in defaults, and banks have fared better than expected
to date, buoyed by strong capital positions. Low unemployment and robust wage growth have also limited the number of
problem loans, all of which are positive in terms of creditworthiness.

Moreover, while a potential easing of US financial regulations under a Donald Trump Presidency may aid their banks’
competitiveness compared to institutions in the UK and other regions, it is unlikely there will be any material impact on the
underlying creditworthiness of the institutions on the counterparty list maintained by Arlingclose, the authority’s treasury
adviser.

00T Wa)| epuaby



T8 abed

2.14

Overall, the institutions on our adviser Arlingclose’s counterparty list remain well-capitalised and their counterparty advice on
both recommended institutions and maximum duration remain under constant review and will continue to reflect economic
conditions and the credit outlook.

Interest rate forecast (December 2024):

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose expects the Bank of England’s MPC will continue reducing Bank
Rate through 2025, taking it to around 3.75% by the end of the 2025/26 financial year. The effect from the Autumn Budget on
economic growth and inflation has reduced previous expectations in terms of the pace of rate cuts as well as pushing up the
rate at the end of the loosening cycle.

Arlingclose expects long-term gilt yields to remain broadly at current levels on average (amid continued volatility), but to end
the forecast period modestly lower compared to now. Yields will continue remain relatively higher than in the past, due to
guantitative tightening and significant bond supply. As ever, there will be short-term volatility due to economic and
(geo)political uncertainty and events.

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is in Appendix A.

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury investments will be made at an average
rate/yield of 4.6%, and that new long-term loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 5.2%.

Local Context

2.19

On 28™ January 2025, the Authority had no borrowing and £14.5m of treasury investments. This is set out in further detail at

Appendix B. Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below.
Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast

31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28
Actual Estimate Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m

Capital financing requirement 38.6 42.7 45.4 47.7 49.2
Less: External borrowing ** 0 0 0 0 0
Internal borrowing 38.6 42.7 45.4 47.7 49.2
Less: Usable Reserves -174 -17.2 -17.1 -17.1 -17.1
Less: Working Capital -3.1 -3.1 -3.1 -3.1 -3.1
Treasury investments -18.1 -22.4 -25.2 -27.5 -29.0

00T Wa)| epuaby



28 abed

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while balance
sheet resources are the underlying sums available for investment. The Authority’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing
and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing.

The Authority has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme, but minimal investments but will be funding the programme
through internal borrowing.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the Authority’s total debt should be lower
than its highest forecast CFR over the next three years. Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply with this
recommendation during 2025/26.

Liability benchmark: To compare the Council’'s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a liability benchmark has
been calculated showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes the same forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash
and investment balances are kept to a minimum level of £0.2m at each year-end to maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise
credit risk.

The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely to be a long-term borrower or long-
term investor in the future, and so shape its strategic focus and decision making. The liability benchmark itself represents an
estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing the Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue plans

while keeping treasury investments at the minimum level required to manage day-to-day cash flow.
Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Liability benchmark

31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.26 31.3.27 31.3.28
Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast | Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m

Loans CFR 38.6 42.7 45.4 47.7 49.2
Less: Usable Reserves -17.4 -17.2 -17.1 -17.1 -17.1
Less: Working Capital -3.1 -3.1 -3.1 -3.1 -3.1
Net loans requirement 18.1 22.4 25.2 27.5 29.0
Plus: Liquidity allowance 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Liability benchmark 18.3 22.6 25.4 27.7 29.2

Following on from the medium-term forecasts in table 2 above, the long-term liability benchmark assumes capital expenditure
funded by borrowing of £2m average a year, minimum revenue provision on new capital expenditure based on a 25 year
asset life and income, expenditure and reserves all increasing by inflation of 2.5% a year.

00T Wa)| epuaby



€8 abed

Borrowing Strateqy

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

231

2.32

The Authority currently holds £0 million of loans, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The
balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows that the Authority expects to borrow up to £0m in 2025/26. The Authority may however
borrow to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing of £60 million.
Objectives: The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk balance between
securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required. The flexibility
to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change is a secondary objective.

Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local government funding, the Authority’s
borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the
debt portfolio. Short-term interest rates are currently higher than in the recent past but are expected to fall in the coming year
and it is therefore likely to be more cost effective over the medium-term to either use internal resources, or to borrow short-
term loans instead. The risks of this approach will be managed by keeping the Authority’s interest rate exposure within the
limit set in the treasury management prudential indicators, see below.

By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone investment income) and reduce overall
treasury risk. The benefits of [internal / short-term] borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring
additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly.
Arlingclose will assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the
Authority borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2025/26 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if
this causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Authority has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the PWLB but will consider long-term loans
from other sources including banks, pensions and local authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing bonds and
similar instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one source of funding in line with the CIPFA
Code. PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment assets primarily for yield; the
Authority intends to avoid this activity in order to retain its access to PWLB loans.

In addition, the Authority may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are:
 HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)

« National Wealth Fund Ltd (formerly known as UK Infrastructure Bank Ltd)
« any institution approved for investments (see below)
« any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

00T Wa)| epuaby



78 abed

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

« any other UK public sector body

« UK public and private sector pension funds (except Local Government Pension Scheme)

» capital market bond investors

« UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to enable local authority bond issues

Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not borrowing,
but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

» leasing

« hire purchase

» Private Finance Initiative

» sale and leaseback

Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 by the Local Government Association
as an alternative to the PWLB. It issues bonds on the capital markets and lends the proceeds to local authorities. This is a
more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond
investors with a guarantee to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any reason; and there will
be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow
from the Agency will therefore be the subject of a separate report to full Council.

Short-term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Authority exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and
are therefore subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below. Financial derivatives
may be used to manage this interest rate risk (see section below).

Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a premium or receive a
discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature
redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without
replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk. The recent rise in interest rates
means that more favourable debt rescheduling opportunities should arise than in previous years.

Treasury Investment Strateqy

2.37

The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure plus balances and
reserves held. In the past 12 months, the Authority’s treasury investment balance has ranged between £1 and £14.5 million,
and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.

00T Wa)| epuaby



Gg abed

2.38

2.39

2.40

2.41

2.42

2.43

Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to have regard to the security
and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing
money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and
the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to be invested for more than one year,
the Authority will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to maintain
the spending power of the sum invested. The Authority aims to be a responsible investor and will consider environmental,
social and governance (ESG) issues when investing.

Strategy: As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Authority expects to be a long-term investor and treasury
investments will therefore include both short-term low risk instruments to manage day-to-day cash flows and longer-term
instruments where limited additional risk is accepted in return for higher investment income to support local public services.
The CIPFA Code does not permit local authorities to both borrow and invest long-term for cash flow management. But the
Authority may make long-term investments for treasury risk management purposes, including to manage interest rate risk by
investing sums borrowed in advance for the capital programme for up to three years; to manage inflation risk by investing
usable reserves in instruments whose value rises with inflation; and to manage price risk by adding diversification to the
strategic pooled fund portfolio.

ESG policy: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a factor in global investors’ decision
making, but the framework for evaluating investment opportunities is still developing and therefore the Authority’s ESG policy
does not currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in
banks and funds, the Authority will prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Banking and funds
operated by managers that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers
Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship Code.

Business models: Under the IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments depends on the Authority’s “business
model” for managing them. The Authority aims to achieve value from its treasury investments by a business model of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore, where other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted
for at amortised cost.

Approved counterparties: The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 3 below,
subject to the limits shown.

00T Wa)| epuaby



Table 3: Treasury investment counterparties and limits

Credit Banks Banks Registered
. Government Corporates .
rating unsecured secured Providers
UK n/a n/a £ Unlimited n/a n/a
Govt 50 years
AAA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 20 years 50 years 20 years 20 years
AA+ £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
5 years 10 years 25 years 10 years 10 years
AA £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
4 years 5 years 15 years 5 years 10 years
AA- £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
3 years 4 years 10 years 4 years 10 years
£3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
A+
- 2 years 3 years 5 years 3 years 5 years
Q A £3m £3m £3m £3m £1m
L(% 13 months 2 years 5 years 2 years 5 years
® N £3m o £3m £3m £1m
o 6 months 5 years 13 months 5 years
months
None £1.5m n/a £3m £1m £500k
6 months 25 years 5 years 5 years
Pooled funds and real
estate investment £2.5m per fund or trust
trusts

2.44 Minimum credit rating: Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will only be made with entities whose
lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than [A-]. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific
investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are
never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken into account.

2.45 For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a) where external advice indicates the entity to
be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a maximum of £500,000 per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-
peer platform.

00T Wa)| epuaby



/g abed

2.46

2.47

2.48

2.49

2.50

251

2.52

Government: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national governments, regional and local authorities
and multilateral development banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a lower risk of
insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to its
ability to create additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the event of
insolvency. The amount and quality of the security will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds and reverse
repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit
rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and
the counterparty credit rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one counterparty will
not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with
banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit
loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See below for arrangements relating to
operational bank accounts.

Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by, registered providers of social housing or
registered social landlords, formerly known as housing associations. These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social
Housing (in England), the Scottish Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department for Communities (in
Northern Ireland). As providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.
Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and very low or no price volatility by investing
in short-term money markets. They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment
risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee. Although no sector limit applies to
money market funds, the Authority will take care to diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access
to cash at all times.

Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds, including exchange traded funds, that offer enhanced returns over
the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Authority to diversify into asset classes other than
cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date
but can be either withdrawn after a notice period or sold on an exchange, their performance and continued suitability in meeting
the Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in real estate and pay the majority of their rental
income to investors in a similar manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced returns over
the longer term but are more volatile especially as the share price reflects changing demand for the shares as well as
changes in the value of the underlying properties.

00T Wa)| epuaby



88 abed

2.53

2.54

2.55

2.56

2.57

Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for example unsecured corporate bonds
and unsecured loans to companies and universities. Non-bank companies cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent
placing the Authority’s investment at risk.

Operational bank accounts: The Authority may incur operational exposures, for example though current accounts, collection
accounts and merchant acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and with assets greater than
£25 billion. These are not classed as investments but are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore
be kept below £2.0m per bank. The Bank of England has stated that in the event of failure, banks with assets greater than £25
billion are more likely to be bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Authority maintaining operational
continuity.

Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Authority’s treasury advisers, who will
notify changes in ratings as they occur. The credit rating agencies in current use are listed in the Treasury Management
Practices document. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria
then:

* no new investments will be made,

» any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and
« full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible downgrade (also known as “negative
watch”) so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working
day will be made with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not apply to negative
outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating.

Other information on the security of investments: The Authority understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect,
predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the
organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential government
support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and advice from the Authority’s treasury management adviser. No
investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may
otherwise meet the above criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all organisations, as happened in 2008, 2020 and
2022, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the
Authority will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of its
investments to maintain the required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial
market conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to

00T Wa)| epuaby



68 abed

2.58

2.59

2.60

2.61

2.62

invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, or with other local authorities.
This will cause investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested.

Investment limits: The Authority’s revenue reserves available to cover investment losses are forecast to be £10.867 million
on 318t March 2025 and £10.789 million on 315t March 2026. In order that no more than 42% of available reserves will be put
at risk in the case of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government)
will be £5 million. A group of entities under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for limit purposes.
Credit risk exposures arising from non-treasury investments, financial derivatives and balances greater than £2m in operational
bank accounts count against the relevant investment limits.

Limits are also placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ nominee accounts and foreign countries as below.
Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development banks do not count against the limit for any single foreign country,
since the risk is diversified over many countries.

Cash limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central £5m each
Government
UK Central Government Unlimited
Any group of organisations under the same
ownership £5m per group
Any group of pooled funds under the same £5m per manager
management

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s

; £5m per broker
nominee account

Foreign countries £5m per country
Registered providers and registered social £2 5m in total
landlords

Unsecured investments with building societies £2.5m in total
Loans to unrated corporates £1m in total
Money market funds £20m in total
Real estate investment trusts £2.5m in total

Liquidity management: The Authority uses detailed spreadsheets to determine the maximum period for which funds may
prudently be committed. The forecast is compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Authority being forced to
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the
Authority’s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

The Authority will spread its liquid cash over at least four providers (e.g. bank accounts and money market funds) to ensure
that access to cash is maintained in the event of operational difficulties at any one provider.

00T Wa)| epuaby



06 dbed

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

2.63 The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the following indicators.

Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring the value-weighted
average of its investment portfolio. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking
the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their

2.64

2.65

2.66

2.67

perceived risk.

Credit risk indicator

Target

Portfolio average credit [rating / score]

A-

Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the amount of cash
available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing.

Liquidity risk indicator

Target

Total cash available within 3 months

£2.5m

Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits on the

one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

Interest rate risk indicator Limit
Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest rates £500,000
Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in interest rates £500,000

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing loans and investments will be replaced

at new market rates.

00T Wa)| epuaby



T6 abed

2.68 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and
lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowing will be:

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit
Under 12 months 50% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0%
10 years and above 100% 0%

2.69 Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender

can demand repayment

2.70 Long-term treasury management investments: The purpose of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the
risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The prudential limits on the long-term treasury

management investments will be:

Price risk indicator 202526 | 202627 | 2027727 | NOT*ed
Limit on principal invested beyond year end £1.0m £0.5m £0m £0m

2.71 Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled funds and real estate investment trusts but exclude
money market funds and bank accounts with no fixed maturity date as these are considered short-term.

Related Matters

2.72 The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury management strategy.

2.73 Financial derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded into loans and
investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase
income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits). The general power of competence in section
1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e.
those that are not embedded into a loan or investment).

00T Wa)| epuaby



26 abed

2.74

2.75

2.76

2.77

The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures and options) where they can be
clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. Additional risks presented,
such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk.
Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting transactions, will not be subject to this
policy, although the risks they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the approved investment criteria, assessed
using the appropriate credit rating for derivative exposures. An allowance for credit risk calculated using the methodology in
the Treasury Management Practices document will count against the counterparty credit limit and the relevant foreign country
limit.

In line with the CIPFA Code, the Authority will seek external advice and will consider that advice before entering into financial
derivatives to ensure that it fully understands the implications.

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: The Authority has retained retail client status with its providers of financial
services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a smaller range of services but with the
greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the size and range of the Authority’s treasury
management activities, the Director of Finance believes this to be the most appropriate status.

Financial Implications

2.78

2.79

The budget for investment income in 2025/26 is £203.6k based on an average investment portfolio of £4.5 million at an interest
rate of 4.6%. If actual levels of investments and borrowing, or actual interest rates, differ from those forecast, performance
against budget will be correspondingly different.

Where investment income exceeds budget, e.g. from higher risk investments including pooled funds, or debt interest paid falls
below budget, e.g. from cheap short-term borrowing, then 50% of the revenue savings will be transferred to a treasury
management reserve to cover the risk of capital losses or higher interest rates payable in future years.

Other Options Considered

2.80

The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to adopt. The Director
of Finance, having consulted the Cabinet Member for Finance and Enabling, believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some alternative strategies, with their financial and
risk management implications, are listed below.

Alternative Impact on income and Impact on risk management
expenditure

00T Wa)| epuaby



€6 abed

Invest in a narrower range of
counterparties and/or for shorter
times

Interest income will be lower

Lower chance of losses from
credit related defaults, but any
such losses may be greater

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for longer
times

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults, but any
such losses may be smaller

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise; this
is unlikely to be offset by higher
investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in the
event of a default; however
long-term interest costs may be
more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will initially
be lower

Increases in debt interest costs
will be broadly offset by rising
investment income in the
medium term, but long-term
costs may be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing

Saving on debt interest is likely
to exceed lost investment
income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in the
event of a default; however
long-term interest costs may be
less certain

00T Wa)| epuaby



76 abed

Appendix A — Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast — December 2024

Underlying assumptions:

As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) held Bank Rate at 4.75% in December, although, with a 6-3 voting split
and obvious concerns about economic growth, presented a much more dovish stance than had been expected given recent
inflationary data.

The Budget measures remain a concern for policymakers, for both growth and inflation. Additional government spending will
boost demand in a constrained supply environment, while pushing up direct costs for employers. The short to medium-term
inflationary effects will promote caution amongst policymakers.

UK GDP recovered well in H1L 2024 from technical recession, but underlying growth has petered out as the year has
progressed. While government spending should boost GDP growth in 2025, private sector activity appears to be waning, partly
due to Budget measures.

Private sector wage growth and services inflation remain elevated; wage growth picked up sharply in October. The increase
in employers’ NICs, minimum and public sector wage levels could have wide ranging impacts on private sector employment
demand and costs, but the near-term impact will likely be inflationary as these additional costs get passed to consumers.

CPl inflation rates have risen due to higher energy prices and less favourable base effects. The current CPI rate of 2.6% could
rise further in Q1 2025. The Bank of England (BoE) estimates the CPI rate at 2.7% by year end 2025 and to remain over target
in 2026.

The MPC re-emphasised that monetary policy will be eased gradually. Despite recent inflation-related data moving upwards
or surprising to the upside, the minutes suggested a significant minority of policymakers are at least as worried about the
flatlining UK economy.

US government bond yields have risen following strong US data and uncertainty about the effects of Donald Trump’s policies
on the US economy, particularly in terms of inflation and monetary policy. The Federal Reserve pared back its expectations
for rate cuts in light of these issues. Higher US yields are also pushing up UK gilt yields, a relationship that will be maintained
unless monetary policy in the UK and US diverges.

Forecast:

In line with our forecast, Bank Rate was held at 4.75% in December.

00T Wa)| epuaby



G6 abed

The MPC will reduce Bank Rate in a gradual manner. We see a rate cut in February 2025, followed by a cut alongside every
Monetary Policy Report publication, to a low of 3.75%.

Long-term gilt yields have risen to reflect both UK and US economic, monetary and fiscal policy expectations, and increases
in bond supply. Volatility will remain elevated as the market digests incoming data for clues around the impact of policy
changes.

This uncertainty may also necessitate more frequent changes to our forecast than has been the case recently.

The risks around the forecasts lie to the upside over the next 12 months but are broadly balanced in the medium term.

Current Mar-25 Jur-25  Sep-25  Dec-25  Mar-26  Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec-26 Mar-27  Jun-27  Sep-27  Dec-27
Official Bank Rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Central Case 4.75| 4.50 4.25 4.00 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75) -0.75] -0.75 -0.75) -0.75) -0.¥5] -0.75[ -0.75
3-month money market rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Central Case 4.90| 4.60 4.35 4.10 3.90 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75) -0.75] -0.75 -0.75) -0.75) -0.75] -0.75[ -0.75
Byr gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.50 0.530 0.5%0 0.530 0.30 0.90 0.30 0.30 0.50
Central Case 4.34)| 4.30 4.20 4.10 4.00 3.90 3.90 3.95 4.00)0 4.05[ 4.05 4.05| 4.05
Downside risk 0.00f -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75) -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80f -0.80
10yr gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.90 0.30 0.30 0.30
Central Case 4.56| 4.55 4.45 4.30 4.20 4.20) 4.20( 4.20 4.25) 4.35( 4,35 4.25] 4.35
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75| -0.B0) -0.80{ -0.80f -0.BO
20yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.90 0.0 0.90 0.90 0.30 0.90 0.%0 0.%0 0.90
Central Case 5.05 5.00 4.90 4.80 4.70 4.65] 4.65( 4.65 4.65) 4.65( 4.65 4.65| 4.65
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75] -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80{ -0.80
50yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.30 0.90 0.30 0.30 0.90
Central Case 4.52| 4.70 4.60 4.50 4.40 4.35| 4.35[ 4.35 4.35| 4.35[ 4.35 4.35| 4.35
Downside risk 0.00[ -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70] -0.75 -0.75) -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80f -0.80

PWLB Standard Rate = Gilt yield + 1.00%

PWLB Certainty Rate = Gilt yield + 0.80%

PWLB HRA Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

National Wealth Fund (NWF) Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

00T Wa)| epuaby



96 abed

Appendix B — Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position

28/01/2025 28/01/2025
Actual
Portfolio Average Rate
£m %
External borrowing: 0 0
Total external borrowing 0 0
Treasury investments:
Banks, MMF & building societies (unsecured) 9.5 4.7
Government (incl. local authorities) 5.0 4.9
Total treasury investments 145 4.8
Net Investments 14.5

00T Wa)| epuaby



16 abed

Appendix H — MRP Statement

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay that debt in later years. The

amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although

there has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to
the former Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG

Guidance) most recently issued in April 2024.

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is financed over a period that is reasonably

commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits.

The MHCLG Guidance requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP Statement each year and provides a number of

options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP, but does not preclude the use of other appropriate methods. The following

statement incorporates options recommended in the Guidance as well as locally determined prudent methods.

MRP is calculated by reference to the capital financing requirement (CFR) which is the total amount of past capital expenditure

that has yet to be permanently financed, noting that debt must be repaid and therefore can only be a temporary form of funding.

The CFR is calculated from the Authority’s balance sheet in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and

Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Expenditure in Local Authorities, 2021 edition.

e For unsupported capital expenditure incurred after 315t March 2008, MRP will be determined by charging the expenditure
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset as the principal repayment on an annuity with an annual interest rate of
4%, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP on purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50
years. MRP on expenditure not related to fixed assets but which has been capitalised by regulation or direction will be
charged over 20 years.

e For assets acquired by leases, MRP will be determined as being equal to the element of the rent or charge that goes to
write down the balance sheet liability.

e Where former operating leases have been brought onto the balance sheet due to the adoption of the IFRS 16 Leases
accounting standard, and the asset values have been adjusted for accruals, prepayments, premiums and/or incentives,
then the annual MRP charges will be adjusted so that the total charge to revenue remains unaffected by the new standard.

e For capital expenditure on loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more frequent instalments of principal, the
Council will make nil MRP, but will instead apply the capital receipts arising from principal repayments to reduce the capital
financing requirement instead. In years where there is no principal repayment, MRP will be charged in accordance with

00T Wa)| epuaby



86 abed

the MRP policy for the assets funded by the loan, including where appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the assets
become operational. While this is not one of the options in the MHCLG Guidance, it is thought to be a prudent approach
since it ensures that the capital expenditure incurred on the loan is fully funded over the life of the assets.
There is no requirement to charge MRP where the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is nil or negative at the end of
the preceding financial year.
Where the council makes a capital contribution or loan to another entity or where responsibility for a council asset with
borrowing attached is transferred to a third party, then no MRP will be set aside if:

o the payments are appropriately covered by assets

o there are detailed plans demonstrating that all the expenditure will be recovered in an appropriately short time frame
To ensure that this remains a prudent approach the Council will review the expenditure and income regularly to determine
if the income or asset values have decreased to the point that MRP needs to be provided for. Should evidence emerge
which suggests the expenditure will no longer be recovered, MRP will be provided for.
Where the council uses internal borrowing and receipts of rental income are greater than the MRP calculated then as there
are sufficient revenues to repay the capital cost, no MRP will be set aside.

3.5 Capital loans

For capital expenditure on loans to third parties which were made primarily for financial return rather than direct service
purposes, MRP will be charged in accordance with the policy for the assets funded by the loan, including where
appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the assets become operational. This MRP charge will be reduced by the
value any repayments of loan principal received during in the year, with the capital receipts so arising applied to finance
the expenditure instead.

For capital expenditure on loans to third parties which were made primarily for service purposes, the Authority will make
nil MRP except as detailed below for expected credit losses. Instead, the Authority will apply the capital receipts arising
from the repayments of the loan principal to finance the expenditure in the year they are received.

For capital loans made on or after 7" May 2024 where an expected credit loss is recognised during the year, the MRP
charge in respect of the loan will be no lower than the loss recognised. Where expected credit losses are reversed, for
example on the eventual repayment of the loan, this will be treated as an overpayment.

00T Wa)| epuaby



3.6

3.7
-
)
Q
)
©
©

3.8

e For capital loans made before 7" May 2024 and for loans where expected credit losses are not applicable, where a shortfall
in capital receipts is anticipated, MRP will be charged to cover that shortfall over the remaining life of the assets funded by

the loan.

Capital expenditure incurred during 2024/25 will not be subject to a MRP charge until 2025/26 or later.

Based on the Authority’s latest estimate of its capital financing requirement (CFR) on 31st March 2025, the budget for MRP

has been set as follows:

31.03.2025 | 2025/26
Estimated | Estimated
CFR MRP
£m £m
Capital expenditure before 01.04.2008
Supported capital expenditure after 31.03.2008
Unsupported capital expenditure after 31.03.2008 42.7 1.31
Leases and Private Finance Initiative
Transferred debt
Loans to other bodies repaid in instalments
Voluntary overpayment (or use of prior year
overpayments)
Total General Fund 42.7 1.31

Capital receipts

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are classed as capital receipts, and are typically used to finance new capital
expenditure. Where the Authority decides instead to use capital receipts to repay debt and hence reduce the CFR, the

calculation of MRP will be adjusted as follows:

00T Wa)| epuaby



e Capital receipts arising on the repayment of principal on capital loans to third parties will be used to lower the MRP charge
in respect of the same loans in the year of receipt, if any.

e Capital receipts arising on the repayment of principal on finance lease receivables will be used to lower the MRP charge
in respect of the acquisition of the asset subject to the lease in the year of receipt, if any.

e Capital receipts arising from other assets which form an identified part of the Authority’s MRP calculations will be used to
reduce the MRP charge in respect of the same assets over their remaining useful lives, starting in the year after the receipt
is applied.

Any other capital receipts applied to repay debt will be used to reduce MRP in 10 equal instalments starting in the year after
receipt is applied.

00T abed

00T Wa)| epuaby



TOT abed

Appendix | — Investment Strategy

Introduction

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Authority invests its money for three broad purposes:

e because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for example when income is received in advance of
expenditure (known as treasury management investments),

e to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other organisations (service investments), and

e to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this is the main purpose).

This investment strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the government in January 2018 and focuses
on the second and third of these categories.

The statutory guidance defines investments as “all of the financial assets of a local authority as well as other non-financial
assets that the organisation holds primarily or partially to generate a profit; for example, investment property portfolios.” The
Authority interprets this to exclude (a) trade receivables which meet the accounting definition of financial assets but are not
investments in the everyday sense of the word and (b) property held partially to generate a profit but primarily for the provision
of local public services. This aligns the Authority’s definition of an investment with that in the 2021 edition of the CIPFA
Prudential Code, a more recent piece of statutory guidance.

Treasury Management Investments

4.4

The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g.
through payroll and invoices). It also holds reserves for future expenditure and collects local taxes on behalf of other local
authorities and central government. These activities, plus the timing of borrowing decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is
invested in accordance with guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The balance of treasury
management investments is expected to fluctuate between £1m and £14m during the 2025/26 financial year.

00T Wa)| epuaby



20T abed

4.5 Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the Authority is to support effective treasury
management activities.

4.6  Further details: Full details of the Authority’s policies and its plan for 2025/26 for treasury management investments are
covered in a separate document, the treasury management strategy, which is part of these appendices.

Service Investments: Loans

4.7  Contribution: The Council will lend money to its subsidiaries, local businesses, local charities and housing associations to
support local public services and stimulate local economic growth.

4.8  Security: The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable to repay the principal lent and/or the
interest due. In order to limit this risk, and ensure that total exposure to service loans remains proportionate to the size of the
Authority, upper limits on the outstanding loans to each category of borrower have been set as follows:

Table 1: Loans for service purposes in £ millions

Category of borrower 31.3.2024 actual 2025/26
Balance Loss Net figure in Approved
owing allowance accounts Limit
£m
Subsidiaries 0 0 0 1.0
Local businesses 0 0 0 0.5
Local charities 0 0 0 0.5
Housing associations 0 0 0 1.0
TOTAL 0 0 0 3.0

00T Wa)| epuaby



€0T abed

4.9  Accounting standards require the Authority to set aside loss allowance for loans, reflecting the likelihood of non-payment. The
figures for loans in the Authority’s statement of accounts are shown net of this loss allowance. However, the Authority makes
every reasonable effort to collect the full sum lent and has appropriate credit control arrangements in place to recover overdue
repayments.

4.10 Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding service loans by using
specialist advice to understand the market and the potential future demands of the market and the customers in it. It will also
use benchmarking data from the market to determine future potential risks which need to be planned for. External advice is
only sought from credible sources eg acknowledged experts in their fields and officers ensure that they fully understand any
information given to them before decision or advice is taken.

Commercial Investments: Property

4.11 Contribution: The Authority invests via Regeneration schemes such as Levelling Up Fundings via the Government in property
with the intention of making a profit that will be spent on local public services. Levelling Up funding in being invested in
regenerating the Market Hall site and clearing the existing Fire Station site for future regeneration.

Table 2: Property held for investment purposes in £ millions

Property [type] Actual 31.3.2024 actual 31.3.2025 expected
Purchase Gains or Value in Gains or Value in
cost (losses) accounts (losses) accounts
N/A 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

4.12 Security: In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a property investment to be secure if its
accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase cost including taxes and transaction costs.

4.13 Where value in accounts is at or above purchase cost: A fair value assessment of the Authority’s investment property portfolio
has been made within the past twelve months, and the underlying assets provide security for capital investment. Should the

00T Wa)| epuaby



0T obed

4.14

4.15

4.16

2024/25 year end accounts preparation and audit process value these properties below their purchase cost, then an updated
investment strategy will be presented to full Council detailing the impact of the loss on the security of investments and any
revenue consequences arising therefrom.

Where value in accounts is below purchase cost: The fair value of the Authority’s investment property portfolio is no longer
sufficient to provide security against loss, and the Authority is therefore taking mitigating actions to protect the capital invested.

Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding property investments by
involving specialist advisors with expertise in the type of property being purchased, looking at historic data and speaking to
other councils undertaking similar activities.

Liquidity: Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and convert to cash at short notice and
can take a considerable period to sell in certain market conditions. To ensure that the invested funds can be accessed when
they are needed, for example to repay capital borrowed, the Council ensures that properties purchased are in an active market
where there is demonstrable demand to ensure that the authority does not purchase assets which it will not be able to sell on
at a later date.

Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees

4.17

Although not strictly counted as investments, since no money has exchanged hands yet, loan commitments and financial
guarantees carry similar risks to the Authority and are included here for completeness.

Proportionality

4.18

The Council does not plan to become dependent on profit generating investment activity to achieve a balanced revenue
budget.

00T Wa)| epuaby



GOT obed

Borrowing in Advance of Need

4.19

Government guidance is that local authorities must not borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely in order to profit
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. The Council would only not follow this guidance if interest rate forecasts and
treasury advisor guidance set out that it was more cost effective, in terms of significantly reduced debt interest charges,
for the Council to borrow for the approved 3 year capital programme at a point of time rather than when that expenditure is
taking place over that 3 year period. It is unlikely that this will happen however the option should not be closed off. Funds
would be invested. The Councils policies in investing the money borrowed, including management of the risks, would be as
per normal short term Treasury Investments.

Capacity, Skills and Culture

4.20

421

4.22

Elected members and statutory officers: Member training will take place annually as part of the induction process. External
advisors will provide reports to support investment decisions with officers ensuring that they fully understand them and can
relate them to the strategic objectives and risk profile of the Council.

Commercial deals: Significant work has been undertaken using external advisors and relevant training courses have been
attended to ensure that officers are fully aware of the code and statutory requirements of a local authority which is investing.

KPMG have developed a modelling tool for the Council to use when assessing potential purchases as a precursor to engaging
with external consultants to ensure that potential purchases are likely to make sense from the perspective of the authority
before incurring advisor costs. However, following an internal review of the policy, it has been decided that the Council may
wish to make purchases which do not make a financial return or may indeed make a loss in the short term. On these occasions
a business case will be developed which specifies the non-financial benefits of the investment. These are likely to be
regenerative schemes for the greater good of the area with an intended long term impact. The regenerative and redevelopment
benefits which will flow from the investment will be taken into account in the development of the business case, so if the net
investment yield falls below 0.75% it can still proceed if these benefits are deemed to outweigh the lower than target yield.

Corporate governance: when investment decisions are to be made, they are to be led by the Council’s Director of Finance
in consultation with the Corporate Management Team. They will assess the potential investment opportunity using the KPMG

00T Wa)| epuaby



90T abed

finance appraisal model and should they decide it presents a strong opportunity for the Council and complies with the relevant
criteria a conditional offer can be made. A business case will then be developed and presented ensuring that once greater
detail is included, it makes a satisfactory income yield and/or economic redevelopment and regeneration impact. When the
business case is completed, if it is still compliant with the Council criteria, it will be presented to Cabinet for approval before
purchase is completed. Once a purchase has been made the Director of Finance will provide quarterly reports in line with
financial and monitoring reports on the status of the investment.

Investment Indicators

4.23

4.24

The Authority has set the following quantitative indicators to allow elected members and the public to assess the Authority’s
total risk exposure as a result of its investment decisions.

Total risk exposure: The first indicator shows the Authority’s total exposure to potential investment losses. This includes
amounts the Authority is contractually committed to lend but have yet to be drawn down and guarantees the Authority has
issued over third party loans.

Table 3: Total investment exposure in £millions

Total investment exposure 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2026
Actual Forecast Forecast
Treasury management investments 0 2 4
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Commercial investments: Property 0 0 0
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 0 2 4
Commitments to lend 0 0 0
Guarantees issued on loans 0 0 0
TOTAL EXPOSURE 0 0 0

00T Wa)| epuaby



/0T abed

4.25

4.26

How investments are funded: Government guidance is that these indicators should include how investments are funded.
Since the Authority does not normally associate particular assets with particular liabilities, this guidance is difficult to comply
with. However, the following investments could be described as being funded by borrowing. The remainder of the Authority’s
investments are funded by usable reserves and income received in advance of expenditure.

Table 4: Investments funded by borrowing in £millions

Investments funded by borrowing 31AOCP;L|22IZ4 3;6?2'02;;5 3;(')?;2:;6
Treasury management investments 0 0 0
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Service investments: Shares 0 0 0
Commercial investments: Property 0 0 0
TOTAL FUNDED BY BORROWING 0 0 0

Rate of return received: This indicator shows the investment income received less the associated costs, including the cost
of borrowing where appropriate, as a proportion of the sum initially invested. Note that due to the complex local government
accounting framework, not all recorded gains and losses affect the revenue account in the year they are incurred.

Table 5: Investment rate of return (net of all costs)

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Investments net rate of return

Actual Forecast Forecast
Treasury management investments 5.2 4.9 4.6
Service investments: Loans 0 0 0
Service investments: Shares 0 0 0
Commercial investments: Property 0 0 0
ALL INVESTMENTS 5.2 4.9 4.6

00T Wa)| epuaby



Agenda Item 10c

Page 108



60T abed

Appendix J — Consultation Results

promoted on a variety of social media channels.
The survey closed at 12noon on Thursday 2 January 2025
valid responses received.

Bromsgrove District Council - Budget Consultation for 2025/26
The budget consultation opened on Thu 5 December 2024. An email invite was sent to the Bromsgrove Community Panel. The survey was also

. The response rate for the community panel was 48%.

There were a total of 278

Qno. | Question Responses Responses | %

(2Q7%3) ':;3 /)(l)?uthreezlCliigtir?gsirg?sse;%r%\éfel’)?lsul(:t Resident of Bromsgrove District 276 100.0%

Have a business based here 11 4.0%

Q2 Please tell us where you live or where your Alvechurch South 4 1.5%

(273) | business is located. Alvechurch Village 9 3.3%

_ . _ Aston Fields 25 9.2%

e St essa oo o ety [ Avoncror s [ 2o

live) ' Barnt Green & Hopwood 5 1.8%

Belbroughton and Romsley 24 8.8%

Bromsgrove Central 27 9.9%

Catshill North 7 2.6%

Catshill South 4 1.5%

Charford 13 4.8%

Cofton 4 1.5%

Drakes Cross 2 0.7%

Hagley East 1 0.4%

Hagley West 4 1.5%

Hill Top 9 3.3%

Hollywood 3 1.1%

Lickey Hills 6 2.2%

Lowes Hill 15 5.5%

00T Wa)| epuaby



OTT obed

Marlbrook 11 4.0%
Norton 11 4.0%
Perryfields 7 2.6%
Rock Hill 9 3.3%
Rubery North 6 2.2%
Rubery South 5 1.8%
Sanders Park 11 4.0%
Sidemoor 16 5.9%
Slideslow 10 3.7%
Tardebigge 12 4.4%
Wythall East 3 1.1%
Wythall West 2 0.7%
Q3 Which services do you think it is important for [ Community and Voluntary Sector 39 14.1%
(276) | the Council to invest in? Community Parks and Open Spaces 103 37.3%
Plgage note that High_vvays are not incll_Jded as (IE:g\Trr;q:;Iz]tSan;S;tainability 15293 ;11146122

this is a Worcestershire County Council -~ :
function Events and Arts Activities 50 18.1%
Local Economic Development and Employment 130 47.1%
Please pick your top 3 most important. Maintenance of the Landscape and Environment 121 43.8%
Strategic Housing 68 24.6%
Waste and Recycling 108 39.1%
Welfare and Financial Support 58 21.0%
Q4 Do you agree that the Council should reinvest | Strongly agree 62 22.5%
(276) |in technology_in order tc_) r_nake services more Agree 115 41.7%
E;a/cdugféuel{f?ectlve and efficient and to be digital Neither agree nor disagree -0 o5 4%
Disagree 22 8.0%
Strongly disagree 7 2.5%
Q5 Do you agree that the Council should increase | Strongly agree 60 21.8%
(275) | investment in temporary accommodation to Agree 100 36.4%
Neither agree nor disagree 65 23.6%

00T Wa)| epuaby



TTT abed

support homeless families and individuals in Disagree 30 10.9%
district? Strongly disagree 20 7.3%

Q6 Do you agree that the Council should invest in | Strongly agree 116 42.0%
Sl P s
coecne;res and to pr’ioritise Poc‘:al skills? Ngither agree nor disagree 32 11.6%
Disagree 1 0.4%

Strongly disagree 5 1.8%

Q7 Do you agree that the Council should be Strongly agree 81 29.7%
1) mprovemen Distiot (810) o bring extra |2 108 | 90.6%
frg]cpur(s)\i/r?trg?[?]e Bromsgrove Town gentre Neither agree nor disagree o8 21.2%
offering? Disagree 16 5.9%
Strongly disagree 10 3.7%

Q8 Do you agree that the Council should invest Strongly agree 35 12.7%
(276) more in our front-line services to cover Agree 102 37.0%
increases in fuel? Neither agree nor disagree 115 41.7%
Disagree 16 5.8%

Strongly disagree 8 2.9%

Q9 Do you agree that the Council needs to Strongly agree 64 23.4%
(274) invo]ve young people more in decision Agree 103 37.6%
making and local democracy? Neither agree nor disagree 71 25.9%
Disagree 28 10.2%

Strongly disagree 8 2.9%

Q10 | Do you agree that the Council should invest in | Strongly agree 34 12.3%
(@70 | greater data and systems support o enable | agree |
enhance decision making? Neither agree nor disagree 98 35.5%
Disagree 28 10.1%

Strongly disagree 3 1.1%

Strongly agree 21 7.6%

00T Wa)| epuaby



21T abed

Agree 90 32.6%
Do you support fees and charges (this Neither agree nor disagree 55 19.9%
((371%) excludes parking) rising by 4% to keep them ; g g : 00
in line with inflation and rising staffing costs? | D!Sagree 67 24.3%
Strongly disagree 43 15.6%
Q12 | In order to maintain services, what level of increase to Bromsgrove District Council's proportion of Council Tax do you
support?
Q12a | Increase of 1.99% Strongly agree 54 24.8%
(218) Agree 80 36.7%
Neither agree nor disagree 42 19.3%
Disagree 20 9.2%
Strongly disagree 22 10.1%
Q12b | Increase of 2.99% Strongly agree 38 20.0%
(190) Agree 49 25.8%
Neither agree nor disagree 22 11.6%
Disagree 29 15.3%
Strongly disagree 52 27.4%
Q13 | Please let us know your suggestions for
(178) | investing in the District to increase prosperity
and_enhance ?‘ppea' for residents and This was an open question and the comments will be analysed separately
businesses alike.
Q14 | Please let us know any other comments on
(118) | the budget or ideas for reducing costs or

increasing income to ensure Council services
remain sustainable.

This was an open question and the comments will be analysed separately

00T Wa)| epuaby



¢TT abed

About You
Answering these questions is optional. Any answers are completely anonymous and confidential. The reason why we ask you these questions is so we can:

- Make our council services open to everyone in the district

- Treat everyone fairly and appropriately when they use our services

- In consultations, make sure that we have views from all across the district

The Equality Act 2010 makes these aims part of our legal duties. Your answers help us check that we have met the law and help improve our services.

Q15 | What is your current housing status? Owner 171 62.9%
(272) Mortgaged 68 25.0%
Part rent/part buy 2 0.7%
Private renting 7 2.6%
Council tenant 6 2.2%
Social housing 6 2.2%
Living with relatives 3 1.1%
Private renting 8 2.9%
Other (please specify) 1 0.4%
Q16 [ Which of the following best describes your 16-19yrs 0 0.0%
(273) | age? 20-29yrs 3 1.1%
30-39yrs 22 8.1%
40-49yrs 27 9.9%
50-59yrs 51 18.7%
60-69yrs 75 27.5%
70-79yrs 70 25.6%
80+ years 14 5.1%
Prefer not to say 11 4.0%
QL7 : Yes 72 26.4%
(273) [ Do you have any long-standing health
- ) Yo
?T(r)lggqlﬁﬁg ggt gé?(?t?elflilntzs.disability as ‘a physical or No 177 64.8%
mental impairment that has a substantial and long-term adverse
effect on your ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities’) Prefer not to say 24 8.8%

00T Wa)| epuaby



vTT obed

Q18 [ Which best describes your gender? Female 123 44.9%
(274) Male 137 50.0%
Prefer not to say 12 4.4%
Other (please specify) 2 0.7%
Q20 [ Which best describes your ethnicity White English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish. British 245 89.7%
(273) Any other White background 6 2.2%
Mixed or Multiple ethnic groups 4 1.5%
Asian or Asian British 1 0.4%
Black, African, Caribbean or Black British Arab 0 0.0%
Prefer not to say 15 5.5%
Other ethnic group 2 0.7%
Q21 [ Which best describes your religion or belief? | Atheist 28 10.3%
(272) Buddhist 0 0.0%
Christian 143 52.6%
Humanist 9 3.3%
Hindu 0 0.0%
Jewish 0 0.0%
Muslim 3 1.1%
Pagan 7 2.6%
Sikh 0 0.0%
No religion/belief 50 18.4%
Prefer not to say 26 9.6%
Other (please specify) 6 2.2%
Q49 | Which of the following best describes your Bisexual 9 3.3%
(270) | sexual orientation? Heterosexual 217 80.4%
Lesbian or Gay 6 2.2%
Prefer not to say 35 13.0%
Other (please specify) 6 2.2%

00T Wa)| epuaby



Agenda Item 10d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 19" February
2025

Bromsgrove District Local Plan — Local Development Scheme
2025

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Kit Taylor

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Ruth Bamford

Report Author Job Title: Strategic Planning and Conservation
Mike Dunphy Manager

email: m.dunphy@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel: 01527 881325

Wards Affected All

Ward Councillor(s) consulted Yes via SPSG

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) Communities which are Safe, Well
Maintained and Green

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet Recommend to Council that:-

1. Appendix A: Bromsgrove District Council Local Development
Scheme 2025 is approved as the Council’s programme for
plan-making, effective as of 19" February 2025

2. Delegated authority is granted to the Cabinet Member for
Planning, Licensing and WRS to approve updates to the Local
Development Scheme as required.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  On the 30" July 2024 the Government published a consultation titled
‘Proposed reforms to the National Planning Policy Framework and
other changes to the planning system’. Following this consultation on
the 12" December 2024 a new version of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) was published.

2.2  The proposed changes to the NPPF and the Council’s response were
discussed at length at the Council meeting held on the 23 September
2024, and prior to this at the Strategic Planning Steering Group (SPSG)
held on the 29" August. The final changes to the NPPF were also
discussed at the SPSG on the 23 January 2025.

Page 115



Agenda Item 10d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 19" February
2025

2.3  The issues raised by the new NPPF will be addressed through the
development of the Local Plan, this report only addresses the new
timetable which is required as a result of the new NPPF.

2.4  The following statement accompanied the publication of the
NPPF: ‘areas must commit to timetables for new plans within 12
weeks of the updated NPPF or ministers will not hesitate to use their
existing suite of intervention powers to ensure plans are put in place.’

2.5 In order to meet the requirement outlined para 2.4 above, a new Local
Development Scheme (LDS) has been produced which can be seen at
appendix A. The LDS is the timetable for the Planning Policies which
the Council intend to produce. The LDS was also discussed at SPSG
meeting on the 23" January 2025.

2.6  The LDS outlines the likely path the Bromsgrove District Local Plan will
take to adoption. It has been drafted to take into account the
introduction of a new plan making system later in 2025. With that in
mind, until the final details of the new system are known, the stages of
plan making identified for 2026 and beyond are considered by officers
to be the likely process, these stages may need to be amended at a
later date. To enable amended versions of the LDS to be approved
without delay, a delegation to the Cabinet Member has been included
in the recommendations associated with this report. It is envisaged that
any new timetables will also be discussed at a SPSG meeting as per
normal practice.

2.7  The significant element to note on the timetable is the publication of a
draft plan for wide ranging public and stakeholder consultation in May
or June this year. The details of the draft plan and also the approach to
engagement and consultation will be covered in further reports in due
course.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 None at this stage an agreed budget exists to prepare the Local Plan.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Local Development Scheme is produced under Section 15 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended). The
legislation states that Councils must prepare and maintain a Local
Development Scheme specifying:

Page 116



Agenda Item 10d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 19" February
2025

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

e the Local Development Documents (LDDs) which are to be
Development Plan Documents (DPDs);

e the subject matter and geographical area of each Development
Plan Document;

¢ which Development Plan Documents (if any) are to be prepared
jointly with one or more other local planning authorities;

e any matter or area in respect of which the authority has agreed
(or propose to agree) to the constitution of a joint committee; and,

¢ the timetable for the preparation and revision of the Development
Plan Documents.

Endorsing this LDS ensures that the Council meets the requirement of
the above legislation.

STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqic Purpose

The new Bromsgrove District Local Plan, as such will have potential
implications on all of the Strategic Purposes.

Run & grow a successful business

Work & financial independence

Living independent, active & healthy lives

Affordable & sustainable homes

Communities which are safe well-maintained & green

Further details on those impacts will be outlined when the draft Local
Plan is considered by members later this year.

Climate Change Implications

It is not considered that the LDS will have any climate change
implications. The Bromsgrove District Local Plan will have climate
change implications and they will be detailed in future reports.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Equalities and Diversity Implications

There are not considered to be any customer/equality or diversity
implications.

Page 117



Agenda Item 10d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 19" February
2025

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1 A significant risk associated with this report is if the Local Development
Scheme is not adopted. The Council will not have an up to date timetable
for plan production as per the requirement stated at para 2.4 above. Not
having a timetable in place may lead to intervention by the Ministry of
Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG).

7.2  In addition to having a timetable in place, it is also a requirement of the
MHCLG that plan making needs to continue at pace. To that end, one of
the changes made as part of the recent reforms it to add clarity to the
intervention criteria by which MHCLG judge whether to intervene if plan
making doesn’t progress.

‘Decisions on intervention will be taken in line with relevant legal
tests and should have regard to plan progress and local
development needs. The Secretary of State may also consider
other matters that they deem relevant to the case, including sub
regional or regional or national development needs.’

7.3  The paragraph above is taken from the Planning Practice Guidance
(PPG) and clearly identifies that a plan’s progress, and meeting local
development needs are going to be considered alongside wider sub
regional, regional and national development needs when considering
whether or not to intervene in a local authority’s plan making process.
Any attempt to delay plan making or not meet identified needs is likely
to end in intervention.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix A: Bromsgrove District Council Local Development Scheme
February 2025

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Portfolio Holder ClIr Kit Taylor 24" January

Guy Revans / Ruth Bamford 24" January

Page 118



Agenda Item 10d

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 19" February

2025

Lead Director / Assistant

Director

Financial Services Peter Carpenter 24" January
Legal Services Claire Felton 24™ January

Policy Team (if equalities | N/A
implications apply)

Climate Change Officer (if | N/A
climate change
implications apply)

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Bromsgrove District Council — 19th February 2025
Member Questions

1. From Councillor J. Elledge
Question for the Leader

“Can we please get a list of all bus shelters in the district along with -
A/ who owns them
B/ which team maintains each one

C/ the current state of repair of each one and example of what each repair status
means

D/ the planned maintenance schedule for them?”

2. From Councillor J. Clarke
Question for the Cabinet Member for Economic Development and
Regeneration

“I regularly receive comments asking what the Council is doing to reverse the decline
of our High street. So, | went on a short walk through the town centre. This revealed 20
businesses are boarded up and with forthcoming closures, including the Halifax and
Lloyds, this will soon rise to 23.

Has this Council explored using the High Street Rental Auctions powers launched in
December as a way of tackling this problem?”

3. From Councillor S. Robinson
Question for the Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Community
Safety

“With Worcestershire County Council encouraging residents to cut back hedges in
February, do you not agree it is time for residents in the district to have the opportunity
to have their brown bins collected from the start of February?”

4. From Councillor J. Robinson
Question for the Cabinet Member for economic development and regeneration

“Can the portfolio holder update the council what the plans are for Stourbridge Road
Car Park?”

5. From Councillor S. Evans
Question for the Cabinet Member for economic development and regeneration

“In the last full council meeting the portfolio holder confirmed the council were looking
into setting up a Bromsgrove BID. Can you confirm if any businesses have suggested
they would be in support of this and what level of tax they would be expected to pay?”

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL 19th February 2025

NOTICE OF MOTION

The following Notice of Motion has been submitted in accordance with Procedure
Rule 10 by Councillor R. Hunter:

“Council resolves to amend the constitution so that all committee chairs and external
body appointments are approved at full council at the start of each municipal year,
beginning in May 2025.”

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 16a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 16a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	7 Urgent Decisions
	Urgent Decision Worcestershire Promoting Independent Living Service Tender Jan 2025 - REDACTED

	10a Pay Policy 2025 - 2026
	10b Strategic Parking Review
	10c Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including fees and Charges (following consultation)
	Appendix C - Worcestershire Regulatory Services Fees and Charges
	Appendix D - Reserves Position
	Appendix E – Capital Programme
	Appendix F – Capital Strategy
	Appendix G – Treasury Management Strategy
	Appendix H – MRP Statement
	Appendix I – Investment Strategy
	Appendix J – Consultation Results

	10d Local Development Scheme
	12 Questions on Notice
	13 Motions on Notice
	16a Strategic Parking Review
	Appendix 6 - Exempt Information

	16b Medium Term Financial Plan - Tranche 2 Budget including fees and Charges (following consultation)
	17 Urgent Decisions
	Urgent Decision Worcestershire Promoting Independent Living Service Tender Jan 2025 - Exempt


